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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

11:25 a.m.: 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: The D i v i s i o n c a l l s Case 12,284. 

MR. CARROLL: A p p l i c a t i o n of McElvain O i l and Gas 

Pr o p e r t i e s , I n c . , f o r compulsory p o o l i n g and an unorthodox 

w e l l l o c a t i o n , Rio A r r i b a County, New Mexico. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: C a l l f o r appearances. 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Examiner, my name i s 

W i l l i a m F. Carr w i t h the Santa Fe law f i r m Campbell, Carr, 

Berge and Sheridan. We represent McElvain O i l and Gas 

Pr o p e r t i e s , I n c . , i n t h i s matter, and I have two witnesses. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: A d d i t i o n a l appearances? 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, Scott H a l l from the 

M i l l e r - S t r a t v e r t - T o r g e r s o n law f i r m , Santa Fe, appearing on 

behalf of Energen Resources Corporation t h i s morning w i t h 

one witness. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: A d d i t i o n a l appearances? 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, Jim Bruce of Santa Fe, 

re p r e s e n t i n g NM&O Operating Company. I do not have a 

witness. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Any a d d i t i o n a l appearances? 

W i l l the witnesses please stand t o be sworn in? 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Carr? 

MR. CARR: At t h i s time we c a l l Mr. Jordan. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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STEVE JORDAN, 

the witness herein,, a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARR: 

Q. Would you s t a t e your name f o r the re c o r d , please? 

A. Steve Jordan. 

Q. Where do you reside? 

A. Santa Fe, New Mexico. 

Q. By whom are you employed? 

A. McElvain O i l and Gas P r o p e r t i e s . 

Q. What i s your p o s i t i o n w i t h McElvain? 

A. Land manager. 

Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before t h i s 

D i v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. At the time of t h a t testimony, were your 

c r e d e n t i a l s as an expert i n petroleum land matters 

accepted — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — and made a matter of record? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n f i l e d i n 

t h i s case on behalf of McElvain? 

A. Yes. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

7 

Q. You're going t o present the land testimony i n 

support of t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the s t a t u s of the lands i n 

the s u b j e c t area? 

A. Yes. 

MR. CARR: Are Mr. Jordan's q u a l i f i c a t i o n s 

acceptable? 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Yes, they are. 

Q. (By Mr. Carr) Would you b r i e f l y summarize what 

i t i s t h a t McElvain seeks w i t h t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. McElvain seeks an order p o o l i n g a l l of the 

minerals from the base of the P i c t u r e d C l i f f s f o r m a t i o n t o 

the base of the Dakota formation under the south h a l f of 

Section 33, Township 2 6 North, Range 2 West, Rio A r r i b a 

County, New Mexico, as f o l l o w s : The south h a l f f o r a l l 

formations and pools t h a t are spaced on 3 20 acres, 

i n c l u d i n g the Basin-Dakota Gas Pool and the Blanco-

Mesaverde Gas Pool; the southeast q u a r t e r f o r a l l 

formations and pools developed on 160-acre spacing, which 

would i n c l u d e the Undesignated Northeast O j i t o Gallup-

Dakota O i l Pool; and the northwest q u a r t e r of the southeast 

q u a r t e r f o r any formations or pools which are developed on 

4 0-acre spacing. And these are t o be dedicated t o our 

Cougar Com 3 3 Number 1 w e l l . 
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Q. That w e l l i s t o be d r i l l e d 2125 from the east 

l i n e , 1850 from the south; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. 1970 i s — I t h i n k , from the south. 

Q. Okay. Have you prepared e x h i b i t s f o r 

p r e s e n t a t i o n here today? 

A. Yes, I hcive. 

Q. Before we get t o those e x h i b i t s , t h e Gavilan-

Mancos O i l Pool i s p o t e n t i a l l y p r o ductive i n t h i s area, i s 

i t not? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And t h a t i s spaced on — developed on 640-acre 

spacing? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. McElvain i s not seeking an order p o o l i n g t h a t 

640-acre spacing u n i t ? 

A. We're not seeking an order a t t h i s time p o o l i n g 

64 0-acre spacing f o r Gavilan-Mancos p r o d u c t i o n , however we 

do recognize t h a t a t any f u t u r e time, i f we d e s i r e t o 

produce from the Gavilan-Mancos form a t i o n , we w i l l need t o 

o b t a i n e i t h e r v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r from a l l of the owners i n 

the s e c t i o n or, i n the a l t e r n a t i v e , compulsory p o o l i n g . 

Q. Let's go t o what has been marked f o r 

i d e n t i f i c a t i o n as McElvain E x h i b i t Number 1. This e x h i b i t 

contains t h r e e p l a t s . I f you could j u s t simply i d e n t i f y 

t h i s and then g e n e r a l l y review the i n f o r m a t i o n contained i n 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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t h i s e x h i b i t . 

A. Okay, McElvain E x h i b i t Number 1 contains t h r e e 

p l a t s showing Section 33. The f i r s t p l a t i s b a s i c a l l y a 

survey p l a t showing the proposed l o c a t i o n . The second p l a t 

i s b a s i c a l l y an ownership p l a t s e t t i n g out the owners and 

the leases i n the south h a l f of Section 33. The t h i r d p l a t 

i s a p l a t showing the south-half spacing u n i t , along w i t h 

w e l l s i n the general area. 

Q. What are the primary o b j e c t i v e s i n the proposed 

w e l l ? 

A. Our primary o b j e c t i v e i s the Dakota f o r m a t i o n . 

Secondary o b j e c t i v e i s the Mesaverde fo r m a t i o n . 

Q. Let's go t o E x h i b i t Number 2. Would you i d e n t i f y 

and review t h i s , please? 

A. McElvain's E x h i b i t Number 2 i s a l i s t of a l l of 

the working i n t e r e s t owners i n the south h a l f of Section 3 3 

from the base of the P i c t u r e d C l i f f s f o r m a t i o n t o the base 

of the Dakota formation. 

Q. And what percentage of the working i n t e r e s t has 

been v o l u n t a r i l y committed t o t h i s w e l l ? 

A. We have approximately 77 percent v o l u n t a r i l y 

committed a t t h i s time. 

Q. Could you review f o r the Examiner the e f f o r t s 

you've made t o o b t a i n v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r i n t h i s w e l l ? 

A. Yes, our i n i t i a l proposal l e t t e r , dated September 

STEVEN T. 
(505) 

BRENNER, CCR 
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1, 1999, was mailed along w i t h an AFE and an o p e r a t i n g — a 

proposed o p e r a t i n g agreement. Follow-up c a l l s were made t o 

a l l of the owners. We d i d receive our c e r t i f i e d m a i l i n g 

green cards back from a l l of the owners, w i t h the exception 

of Mesa Grande Resources. 

We then followed up f a i r l y e a r l y on — I b e l i e v e 

e a r l y November — w i t h another copy of the proposal and a l l 

the a d j o i n i n g documentation, which we sent by r e g u l a r m a i l . 

We've sent probably a h a l f dozen c e r t i f i e d m a i l i n g s t o Mesa 

Grande i n the l a s t couple of years, and a l l of them have 

been — We have received a l l of the green cards back, so I 

suspect perhaps t h a t the postman d i d n ' t catch on t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r occasion. 

I can go down the l i s t here, beginning w i t h t h e 

Energen Resources Corporation. 

Of course, the f i r s t on the l i s t , T.H. McElvain 

O i l and Gas Limited Partnership, i s a McElvain e n t i t y . 

Energen Resources Corporation, we had phone 

conversation w i t h them as e a r l y as l a t e September, on i n t o 

October and November. We received u l t i m a t e l y a farmout 

proposal from them, along w i t h a l e t t e r dated November the 

4 t h . Both myself and George Broome of our company have had 

numerous conversations w i t h Energen Resources Corporation. 

We have not reached a mutually acceptable agreement w i t h 

them. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Noseco Corporation v o l u n t a r i l y j o i n e d t h e w e l l , 

signed the operating agreement, and e l e c t e d nonconsent 

s t a t u s , as d i d Neumann Family Trust. 

Gavilan Dome P r o p e r t i e s , we received t h e i r green 

card back i n September, and we have not been able t o l o c a t e 

a telephone number f o r them. We have sent out a number of 

proposals i n the l a s t few years t o them, and they have been 

unresponsive t o a l l of them. 

Mesa Grande Resources, I p r e v i o u s l y mentioned. 

NM&O Operating Company also received our 

proposal. We've several conversations, or a t l e a s t one 

telephone conversation and several w r i t t e n correspondence 

w i t h NM&O Operating Company. They d i d o f f e r t o farm out 

t h e i r i n t e r e s t t o us or, i n the a l t e r n a t i v e , t r a d e acreage 

w i t h us. U n f o r t u n a t e l y , we don't have any acreage i n t h i s 

area r i g h t now t o tra d e . And as f a r as t h e i r farmout 

proposal, f o r a couple of reasons we d i d not accept t h e i r 

farmout proposal. Probably the most important reason i s , 

t h e i r i n t e r e s t i s subject t o a number of t i t l e c u r a t i v e 

requirements, we beli e v e some s i g n i f i c a n t t i t l e clouds on 

t h e i r t i t l e , and i n a d d i t i o n t h e i r o f f e r d i d not meet our 

economic c r i t e r i o n f o r t h i s w e l l . 

The Apache Corporation i n t e r e s t has been — since 

our i n i t i a l proposal, t h a t i n t e r e s t has been acquired by 

McElvain. 

STEVEN T. 
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Johansen Energy Partnership, we received t h e i r 

green card back and have had some telephone conversations 

w i t h them, and i t appears t h a t they are going t o a l l o w 

t h e i r i n t e r e s t t o be forc e pooled. 

Williams Production Company and Dugan Production 

Company, pursuant t o the l i t t l e n o t a t i o n I have a t the 

bottom, they have some — e i t h e r a r e v e r s i o n a r y working 

i n t e r e s t or a p o t e n t i a l reassignment i n t e r e s t i n t h i s 

p r o p e r t y , and t h e r e f o r e they were n o t i f i e d . We have t a l k e d 

t o both p a r t i e s by phone, and both are e l e c t i n g t o a l l o w 

t h e i r i n t e r e s t t o be compulsorily pooled. 

Q. Mr. Jordan, how w i l l McElvain handle any funds 

t h a t are due t o p a r t i e s t h a t own i n t e r e s t i n t r a c t s w i t h 

t i t l e problems? 

A. For any revenue received f o r those i n t e r e s t s , i t 

w i l l be escrowed i n a bank i n Rio A r r i b a County, u n t i l such 

time as the t i t l e problems are cured. 

Q. I n your opinion, have you made a good f a i t h 

e f f o r t t o l o c a t e a l l the i n t e r e s t owners i n the proposed 

spacing u n i t s and o b t a i n t h e i r v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n 

the w e l l ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Would you i d e n t i f y what has been marked what has 

been marked as McElvain E x h i b i t Number 3? 

A. Well, McElvain E x h i b i t Number 3 i s our i n i t i a l 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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proposal l e t t e r proposing the d r i l l i n g of t h e Cougar Com 33 

Number 1 w e l l , together w i t h a l i s t of the ownership 

p a r t i e s i n the spacing u n i t , being the south h a l f of 

Section 33, together w i t h an AFE and proposed o p e r a t i n g 

agreement. 

Q. Could you i d e n t i f y now what has been marked as 

E x h i b i t 4? 

A. Let's see here... 

Q. I s E x h i b i t 4 the a f f i d a v i t c o n f i r m i n g t h a t n o t i c e 

of today's hearing has been provided i n accordance w i t h OCD 

rul e s ? 

A. There i t i s . Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And were a l l owners who are sub j e c t t o p o o l i n g 

n o t i f i e d of today's hearing? 

A. Yes. 

Q. W i l l McElvain c a l l an a d d i t i o n a l witness t o 

review the t e c h n i c a l p o r t i o n s of t h i s case? 

A. Yes, we w i l l . 

Q. Were E x h i b i t s 1 through 4 e i t h e r compiled by you 

or prepared under your d i r e c t i o n and supervision? 

A. Yes, they were. 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Examiner, a t t h i s 

time we would move the admission i n t o evidence of McElvain 

E x h i b i t s 1 through 4. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: E x h i b i t s 1 through 4 w i l l be 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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admitted as evidence a t t h i s time. 

MR. CARR: And t h a t concludes my d i r e c t 

examination of Mr. Jordan. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Hall? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Mr. Jordan, i f you would, please, could you t e l l 

us whether i n your correspondence or conversations w i t h 

Energen, anyway, whether you discussed t h a t t h i s w e l l might 

al s o t a r g e t the Mesaverde formation? 

A. I don't s p e c i f i c a l l y r e c a l l mentioning t h a t . 

However, our proposal does include a l l formations below the 

base of the P i c t u r e d C l i f f s , and I'm sure t h e y ' r e very 

aware t h a t t h a t would include the Mesaverde f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. I n any event, there's no a l l o c a t i o n of costs i n 

your AFE e x h i b i t s or any of your other e x h i b i t s f o r a 

completion i n the Mesaverde and/or the Dakota; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. And you're not making a recommendation t o the 

Hearing Examiner here t h i s morning f o r an a l l o c a t i o n of 

costs i n the event there's a completion i n the Mesaverde? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Let's review, i f you would, please, s i r , your 

n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h Energen. Can you t e l l the Hearing 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Examiner what b a s i c a l l y held you apart from reaching a deal 

w i t h Energen? 

A. What he l d us apart was based s t r i c t l y on economic 

c r i t e r i o n f o r t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l . We b e l i e v e i t ' s a very 

h i g h - r i s k w e l l , and t h e i r o f f e r d i d not meet our economic 

c r i t e r i o n . 

Q. And what are those economic c r i t e r i a ? 

A. Well, I would defer t o engineering, who w i l l 

t e s t i f y l a t e r , t h a t does the economic c a l c u l a t i o n s f o r the 

w e l l . However, they have advised me t h a t the o f f e r t h a t 

was made by Energen was not s u f f i c i e n t l y h i g h i n terms of 

net revenue i n t e r e s t . I t would b a s i c a l l y b r i n g down our 

net revenue i n t e r e s t , and we d i d not f e e l economically t h a t 

i t made good sense f o r us t o accept t h a t proposal. 

Q. Can you e x p l a i n t o the Hearing Examiner what net 

revenue i n t e r e s t was req u i r e d by McElvain t o undertake the 

w e l l , and what was o f f e r e d by Energen? 

A. Okay, w e l l , we — as we explained t o Energen, 

what we were w i l l i n g t o accept from them was a farmout f o r 

d e l i v e r i n g an 80-percent net revenue i n t e r e s t w i t h no back-

i n . They dec l i n e d t h a t c o u n t e r o f f e r . So t h a t — I guess 

t o answer your question, t h a t was the baseline economic 

c r i t e r i o n f o r us v i s - a - v i s the Energen i n t e r e s t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I f you r e f e r t o your E x h i b i t 2, 

please, s i r , i t shows the gross working i n t e r e s t 
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a t t r i b u t a b l e t o Energen's i n t e r e s t before and a f t e r payout, 

does i t not? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. And can you t e l l the Hearing Examiner what the 

s i z e of t h a t net revenue i n t e r e s t p r o p o r t i o n a t e l y reduced 

i s , before and a f t e r payout? 

A. My understanding and b e l i e f i s t h a t i t ' s 81-1/4-

percent net revenue, i n t e r e s t , which would be 

p r o p o r t i o n a t e l y reduced t o t h e i r working i n t e r e s t t h ey're 

showing t h e r e . 

Q. Right. My question i s , can you t e l l , i f you're 

able, here today, what i s t h a t i n t e r e s t when i t i s 

p r o p o r t i o n a t e l y reduced? Do you have t h a t f i g u r e ? 

A. No, I don't have t h a t f i g u r e . 

Q. I t ' s very small, i s i t not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what d i d Energen o f f e r you t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n 

the w e l l ? What was the term of t h e i r farmout t o you? 

A. They o f f e r e d us u l t i m a t e l y a farmout which would 

d e l i v e r a 78-3/4-percent net revenue i n t e r e s t , w i t h a back-

i n a t payout of 25 percent of t h e i r working i n t e r e s t . 

Q. And when t h a t ' s p r o p o r t i o n a t e l y reduced, does i t 

sound about r i g h t i f we say we're l o o k i n g a t a 2.92 percent 

increase? 

A. I haven't done the c a l c u l a t i o n . 
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Q. Does i t sound about r i g h t , though? 

A. I wouldn't know. 

Q. Did your engineering s t a f f do t h a t c a l c u l a t i o n ? 

A. I don't know i f they have or not. You'd have t o 

ask them. 

Q. Do you have any witness t h a t may be able t o 

t e s t i f y t o t h a t today? 

A. We may. I can't. 

Q. Okay. 

A. That's a l l I can t e s t i f y t o . 

Q. Was i t the back-in working i n t e r e s t t h a t McElvain 

found objectionable? 

A. Both the back-in and the amount of t h e o v e r r i d e , 

yes, both aspects of the proposal. 

Q. And you would agree w i t h me, would you not, t h a t 

the back-in a f t e r payout has a b s o l u t e l y no bearing w i t h 

respect t o the economics on the d r i l l i n g and completion of 

the w e l l ? 

A. Well, i t d e f i n i t e l y has a bearing on the 

economics of our v a l u i n g t h i s w e l l and the o v e r a l l 

economics of d r i l l i n g , completing and producing t h i s w e l l 

and r e t a i n i n g a r e t u r n on our investment. 

Q. How does the after-payout back-in a f f e c t the 

economics of the d r i l l i n g and completion before payout, i f 

you could explain? 
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A. Well, i t doesn't a f f e c t i t before payout. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Mr. Jordan, how long have you been 

working i n the San Juan Basin as a landman, would you say? 

A. Oh, about 18 years. 

Q. And can you give us an estimate on how many w e l l s 

you may have negotiated j o i n d e r f o r unjoined i n t e r e s t s on? 

A. Oh, maybe 50, 100. F i f t y , probably, or l e s s . 

Q. F i f t y or less? 

A. F i f t y or le s s , I ' d say. 

Q. I n your opinion, i s the request f o r Energen t o 

accept a deal f o r p a r t i c i p a t i o n of the w e l l w i t h a zero 

back-in i n accordance w i t h the p r e v a i l i n g custom and 

p r a c t i c e i n the San Juan Basin? 

A. Well, every s p e c i f i c w e l l has i t s own c r i t e r i o n . 

I n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r instance, due t o the r i s k of t h i s w e l l , 

we f e l t l i k e f o r our purposes t h a t i t wasn't a p p r o p r i a t e . 

And I might add t h a t Energen i t s e l f f e l t l i k e t h e i r own 

i n t e r e s t d i d not warrant t h e i r own p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n t h i s 

w e l l , y e t they wanted us t o accept something less than they 

were w i l l i n g t o even accept i n p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n t h i s w e l l , 

which we were not w i l l i n g t o reduce i t t o the same number 

t h a t Energen was o f f e r i n g . 

Q. And i s i t your testimony t h a t the d i f f e r e n c e 

between Energen's proposal and McElvain's proposal rendered 

the w e l l uneconomic? 
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A. From our standpoint, you know, we d i d not f e e l i t 

a p p r o p r i a t e t o accept the k i n d of numbers t h a t was being 

o f f e r e d by Energen. 

Q. Yes. My question i s , d i d the d i f f e r e n c e between 

the two proposals render t h a t prospect uneconomic? 

A. Well, I would defer t h a t question t o our 

engineering department, because I d i d n ' t r e a l l y do the 

c a l c u l a t i o n s . 

Q. Did you represent t o Energen t h a t i t would render 

the prospect uneconomic? 

A. No, I d i d not. 

Q. Can you p o i n t t o any precedent i n the immediate 

v i c i n i t y of the Cougar Com 33 w e l l where an i n t e r e s t owner 

has accepted p a r t i c i p a t i o n w i t h zero back-in, Dakota w e l l , 

f o r instance? 

A. I wouldn't know. 

Q. You don't know of any? 

A. I don't know of any, but i t c e r t a i n l y could 

occur. 

Q. I see by E x h i b i t 3 you are a lawyer? You are a 

lawyer; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I have a — Yes, I'm an a t t o r n e y by education. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So you're f a m i l i a r w i t h the law i n 

t h i s s t a t e t h a t — 

A. A c t u a l l y , I ' d l i k e t o go back t o your previous 
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questio n , because I — 

Q. Please do. 

A. Your previous question was, am I aware of any 

case i n t h i s area where p a r t i e s have accepted a farmout 

w i t h o u t a back-in? And yes, j u s t r e c e n t l y we have. I 

r e c a l l McElvain accepting a farmout from NM&O, I b e l i e v e i t 

was, i n t h i s area w i t h o u t a back-in, j u s t a reserved 

o v e r r i d e . 

And Dugan Production Company as w e l l , I b e l i e v e , 

i f my memory i s c o r r e c t , also accepted — d e l i v e r e d a 

farmout w i t h o u t demanding a back-in. 

Q. Can you c i t e t o the w e l l s f o r us? 

A. Yes, a w e l l — I t ' s our Elk Com 10 Number 1 w e l l , 

l o c a t e d i n Section 10, Township 2 5 North, Range 2 West. 

Q. Any others? 

A. Those two. I mean, we haven't d r i l l e d very many 

w e l l s i n t h i s area, so t h a t ' s a p r e t t y h i g h percentage, I 

t h i n k . I'm not sure how many farmouts we have i n t h i s 

area, but i t ' s under f i v e . There's two out of — two, 

r i g h t t h e r e . 

Q. Get back t o my question. You i n d i c a t e d you are 

an a t t o r n e y by education, you've been i n New Mexico f o r 

q u i t e a long time, p r a c t i c i n g i n the San Juan Basin as a 

landman. You also t e s t i f i e d t h a t i n your view McElvain has 

made a good f a i t h e f f o r t t o secure v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n 
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of Energen and others. 

My question t o you i s , as an a t t o r n e y and a 

landman, you'd be f a m i l i a r w i t h the law i n t h i s s t a t e t h a t 

holds t h a t a covenant of good f a i t h and f a i r d e a l i n g i s 

i m p l i e d i n every c o n t r a c t , and even i n n e g o t i a t i o n s leading 

up t o the contract? 

A. Sure. 

Q. And i s i t also c o r r e c t t o say t h a t the standards 

f o r good f a i t h and f a i r d e a l i n g are e s t a b l i s h e d by the 

customs and p r a c t i c e s of i n d u s t r y i n the area? And I'm 

speaking of the San Juan Basin? 

A. Yes, sure. 

Q. Can you t e l l me what those standards are? 

A. For t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area? 

Q. The customs and p r a c t i c e s , i n d u s t r y and so on — 

A. No, I couldn't t e l l you. 

Q. You cannot t e l l me — 

A. No, I can't. 

Q. So you cannot t e l l me whether McElvain's e f f o r t s 

s a t i s f y t h a t standard f o r n e g o t i a t i n g v o l u n t a r y 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n of the nonjoined i n t e r e s t i n t h i s 

circumstance? 

A. Well, I don't t h i n k — That's, t o me, a l e g a l 

question t h a t I'm not r e a l l y q u a l i f i e d t o answer. I mean, 

I b e l i e v e — My o p i n i o n i s t h a t we c e r t a i n l y attempted t o 
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n e g o t i a t e i n good f a i t h w i t h Energen. We've had many 

conversations w i t h them, sent them many l e t t e r s and have, 

i n f a c t , given them a proposal of what would be acceptable 

t o us. So... 

Q. Let me ask you t o assume a couple of numbers 

here, because i t ' s d i f f i c u l t t o do the c a l c u l a t i o n on the 

p r o p o r t i o n a t e r e d u c t i o n f o r these i n t e r e s t s shown on your 

E x h i b i t 2. But i f you w i l l assume t h a t the i n t e r e s t s t h a t 

Energen proposed t o d e l i v e r a f t e r payout would y i e l d a 

.2929-percent net revenue i n t e r e s t , and then what McElvain 

r e q u i r e d was a .1468-percent i n t e r e s t , b a s i c a l l y h a l f of 

what Energen proposed — I ask you t o assume t h a t — does 

the d i f f e r e n c e between those two cost burdens on the w e l l 

e s t a b l i s h the d i f f e r e n c e between an acceptable and 

unacceptable economic r i s k f o r McElvain? 

A. I would defer t o our engineering department, 

which d i d the c a l c u l a t i o n s on t h i s . 

Q. Well, e a r l i e r you t e s t i f i e d t h a t Energen's 

counterproposal d i d not meet your economic c r i t e r i a , but 

you're not capable — You're not going t o t e s t i f y about 

economic c r i t e r i a ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . Our engineering department made 

those c a l c u l a t i o n s and advised me t h a t i t was not 

acceptable. 

MR. HALL: Pass the witness. 
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CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Mr. Jordan, i f you could get your E x h i b i t s 1 and 

2 tog e t h e r , and maybe the t h i r d page of E x h i b i t 1, which i s 

j u s t simply the land p l a t , the leasehold p l a t , I take i t ? 

A. Okay. 

Q. You are d r i l l i n g on the lease t h a t NM&O Operating 

Company and c e r t a i n l y these others, Noseco Corporation, e t 

cet e r a , have an i n t e r e s t ; i s t h a t not — 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you are seeking t o pool the southeast q u a r t e r 

f o r P i c t u r e d C l i f f s , f o r instance? 

A. No, we are not. 

Q. You're not? 

A. We are not. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Our proposal i s below the base of the P i c t u r e d 

C l i f f s f o rmation. 

Q. Okay. Are there any formations being pooled on a 

160-acre basis? 

A. Yes, p o t e n t i a l l y , there's the Undesignated 

Northeast O j i t o - G a l l u p Dakota O i l Pool t h a t would have a 

p o t e n t i a l of 160-acre spacing. And t h a t ' s a l l I'm aware of 

at t h i s time, but t h a t may not n e c e s s a r i l y be a l l . 

Q. Would i t be accurate, then, l o o k i n g a t E x h i b i t 2, 
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t h a t i n your — e i t h e r column, t h a t the i n t e r e s t s o f , oh, 

the persons from Noseco Corporation down t o Johansen, l e t ' s 

say, t h e i r percentages would double i n a 160-acre u n i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Also — and w e ' l l get i n t o t h i s i n a minute, but 

NM&O received a l e t t e r from McElvain — I don't know i f i t 

was from you or Mr. Broome — s t a t i n g t h a t t h e r e ' s a 

problem w i t h a p o r t i o n of NM&O's i n t e r e s t because i t 

de r i v e s from some cross-assignments by Dugan Corporation 

Corp. and Mesa Grande? 

A. I don't t h i n k you went i n t o t h a t much s p e c i f i c s 

of i t , but I am prepared t o discuss t h a t w i t h you i f you 

would l i k e . 

Q. Well, I'm look i n g a t — maybe t h i s i s your 

l e t t e r , November — the f i n a l page of E x h i b i t 3, the very 

f i n a l page. 

A. Okay, l e t t e r dated November the 19th. 

Q. 29th. 

A. Oh, okay, t h a t was my l e t t e r . 

Q. Yeah. The second f u l l paragraph, t h i r d l i n e 

down, i t says, "As you know, p a r t of your i n t e r e s t i s 

d e r i v e d through Mesa Grande's i n t e r e s t under t h i s farmout." 

And I'm t a l k i n g about the Dugan-Mesa Grande matter. 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. I f y o u ' l l look at E x h i b i t 2 where you have NM&O 
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l i s t e d as owning 1.75, plus or minus, percent i n t e r e s t , can 

you t e l l me what p o r t i o n derives from the Dugan-Mesa Grande 

farmout, and what percentage i t owns independent of t h a t 

farmout? 

A. Three-quarters of i t was deriv e d from Northwest 

P i p e l i n e Corporation and one quarter from Dugan. 

Q. So of t h a t 1.75-percent i n t e r e s t , only one-fourth 

of t h a t — You t a l k about a reassignment o b l i g a t i o n , so 

only one-fourth of t h a t should be reassigned t o Dugan? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , i f they are, i n f a c t , e n t i t l e d t o 

a reassignment, which I'm not — I don't have t h a t — 

Q. A c t u a l l y , f o r your i n f o r m a t i o n , Mr. Jordan, one 

i s i n the works. 

Now, l o o k i n g a t your E x h i b i t 3, you sent out a 

l e t t e r t o the working i n t e r e s t owners on September 1, w i t h 

an AFE and a JOA. And then the next l e t t e r i n your 

package, r i g h t a f t e r the JOA, i s from my c l i e n t , NM&O 

Operating Company, t o you, making a proposal, or a 

counterproposal, i f you w i l l . Did you ever respond i n 

w r i t i n g or by phone c a l l t o t h a t proposal before November 

18th, which was the hearing date set f o r t h i s matter 

o r i g i n a l l y ? 

A. I t i s my r e c o l l e c t i o n t h a t we d i d respond by 

phone c a l l . I b e l i e v e I received a foll o w - u p c a l l from a 

woman t h a t works a t NM&O, i s my r e c o l l e c t i o n . She asked i f 
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we received the l e t t e r and were w i l l i n g t o accept any of 

the terms o f f e r e d , and I i n d i c a t e d t h a t we d i d and t h a t we 

were not i n t e r e s t e d . 

Q. But you d i d n ' t make a counterproposal t o t h i s 

l e t t e r ? 

A. No, we d i d n ' t make a counterproposal because, 

number one, we d i d n ' t have any acreage t o t r a d e . And 

number two, the number of t i t l e d efects and clouds on t h e 

t i t l e of NM&O rendered t h e i r i n t e r e s t of a type t h a t we 

r e a l l y weren't very amenable t o i n h e r i t i n g through some 

s o r t of a farmout or other type of a deal. 

Q. Well, what i s the date of your t i t l e opinion? 

A. I don't r e c a l l o f f the top of my head, but I do 

have a copy of i t w i t h me. 

Q. Yeah, I don't need t o look a t i t . 

A. I t ' s a recent t i t l e o p i n i o n , w i t h i n t he l a s t 

couple of months, i n f a c t . We got our t i t l e o p i n i o n a f t e r 

our proposal went out. We d i d get c o n f i r m a t i o n from the 

at t o r n e y before the date of the t i t l e o p i n i o n , however, 

t h a t confirmed t h a t he had agreed w i t h my c a l c u l a t i o n s as 

t o t he working i n t e r e s t . 

Q. I would l i k e t o know the date of t h a t . You s a i d 

you responded t o t h i s proposal by saying the t i t l e o p i n i o n 

showed t h a t t h e r e were too many t i t l e d e f e c t s . 

A. Yes, s i r . 
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Q. But you d i d n ' t get the o p i n i o n u n t i l q u i t e 

r e c e n t l y . 

A. That's c o r r e c t . But I also p e r s o n a l l y examined 

the t i t l e , so I was aware of the defects — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — pe r s o n a l l y . 

Q. Have you ever provided p o r t i o n s of t h a t t i t l e 

o p i n i o n regarding these defects t o NM&O Operating Company 

so they could — 

A. No, we have not. 

Q. I s i t the normal p r a c t i c e t o t r y t o cure these 

t i t l e defects? 

A. I f we get a w e l l t h a t produces o i l and/or gas, i t 

c e r t a i n l y i s the standard p r a c t i c e t o immediately proceed 

t o cure those d e f e c t s , yes, s i r . Before then, no, t h a t ' s 

not our o b l i g a t i o n . 

Q. You don't want t o cure w o r k i n g - i n t e r e s t d e f e c t s 

before you d r i l l the well? 

A. The reason we sent the proposal t o Dugan 

Production Company i s because we could t e l l from the t i t l e 

t h a t they had a t l e a s t a p o t e n t i a l i n t e r e s t i n t h i s t r a c t . 

I t could take years t o cure t h a t t i t l e , f o r a l l we know. 

And unless and u n t i l there i s o i l and/or gas produced, 

ther e ' s no p o i n t f o r us, a t l e a s t , t o deal w i t h somebody 

else's t i t l e . 
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Q. I s n ' t i t the p r a c t i c e t o inform the other working 

i n t e r e s t owners of any defects and l e t them cure them? 

A. I had t a l k e d t o Mr. Sweet many, many months ago, 

because we've d r i l l e d other w e l l s t h a t had the same d e f e c t . 

So I had t a l k e d t o him a t l e a s t a year ago about t h i s very 

problem. 

Q. Well, you're t a l k i n g about the Dugan problem, but 

t h a t only a f f e c t s one-fourth of NM&O's working i n t e r e s t . 

What about the other defects? I mean, from your l e t t e r , 

from your f i n a l l e t t e r , i t says there's some f i l i n g 

problems, some unapproved assignments. Those are cured as 

a r e g u l a r matter, are they not? 

A. Sometimes they're not too easy t o cure. 

Q. And sometimes they are? 

A. That's c o r r e c t — 

Q. And i f the working i n t e r e s t owner — 

A. — but i t ' s c e r t a i n l y not our r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t o 

cure somebody else's t i t l e . 

Q. Well, I'm not saying t h a t . 

A. Okay. 

Q. I s n ' t i t only f a i r t o i n f o r m the other working 

i n t e r e s t owners what those defects are so they can cure 

them i f necessary, take the burden o f f of you? 

A. At some p o i n t i n time, i f t h e r e i s p r o d u c t i o n 

t h a t , you know, req u i r e s a c u r a t i v e of those items. 
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Q. Okay. 

A. He's owned those leases f o r a long, long time, or 

at l e a s t years, and — 

Q. Which would i n d i c a t e very few problems w i t h them, 

would i t not? 

A. Not ne c e s s a r i l y , not a t a l l . 

Q. So again, you don't want t o cure w o r k i n g - i n t e r e s t 

d e f e c t s before you d r i l l the well? 

A. We don't want t o cure somebody else's problems 

u n t i l we know t h a t there i s production t h a t warrants the 

c u r a t i v e of someone else's problem. 

Q. And once again, i s n ' t i t common p r a c t i c e t o 

inf o r m your other working i n t e r e s t owners i n your w e l l of 

t h e i r d e fects so they can go ahead and cure them? They're 

going t o be held accountable f o r a share of those w e l l 

c o s t s , i n c l u d i n g t i t l e opinions, are they not? 

A. Yeah, we're c e r t a i n l y w i l l i n g t o a l l o w them t o 

know what the defects on t h e i r — you know — 

Q. And once again — 

A. — there's no secret t h e r e , we're not — 

Q. Okay, and i n a t i t l e o p i n i o n , t h a t ' s a l e g i t i m a t e 

cost of d r i l l i n g a well? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And the other working i n t e r e s t owners, one way or 

another, w i l l bear a share of t h a t cost of t h a t t i t l e 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

30 

opinion? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now, going back t o E x h i b i t 3, the second-to-the-

l a s t page of E x h i b i t 3, i n t h a t l e t t e r , which i s from NM&O 

Operating Company t o McElvain O i l and Gas P r o p e r t i e s , Mr. 

Sweet, on behalf of NM&O, asked f o r p o r t i o n s o f the t i t l e 

o p i n i o n regarding h i s i n t e r e s t , d i d he not? 

A. I be l i e v e he d i d . 

Q. Have you provided those t o him? 

A. Not a t t h i s time — 

Q. Are you going — 

A. — but we're happy t o do so. We're p r o v i d i n g 

those p o r t i o n s of the t i t l e o p i n i o n p e r t a i n i n g t o h i s 

s p e c i f i c i n t e r e s t , t h a t ' s not a problem. 

And I might f o l l o w up w i t h t h a t , t h a t t h e r e are a 

number of d i f f e r e n t t i t l e problems p e r t a i n i n g t o h i s 

i n t e r e s t , i n c l u d i n g f a i l u r e t o o b t a i n BLM approval on a 

number of assignments p r i o r t o h i s t a k i n g t i t l e , i n the 

chain of t i t l e t o h i s i n t e r e s t , among other problems. 

But yes, we'd be happy t o provide him w i t h t h a t 

i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. So on the one hand you won't do a farmout w i t h 

him because there's t i t l e problems, and on the other hand 

you haven't informed him of the defects — 

A. Well, as I mentioned, we j u s t r e c e n t l y acquired 
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our t i t l e o p i n i o n , so we are w i l l i n g t o provide him t h a t 

i n f o r m a t i o n , Mr. Bruce. 

Q. And even under your proposed JOA, the f a i l u r e of 

t i t l e or any t i t l e problems f a l l s on the working i n t e r e s t 

owner, not on the operator; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I f we produce the w e l l , we w i l l take care of the 

c u r a t i v e , as f a r as we w i l l inform the p a r t i e s of what i s 

r e q u i r e d . We won't ne c e s s a r i l y do t h e i r work f o r them t o 

cure the problems, but we w i l l d e f i n i t e l y move forward 

q u i c k l y t o inform everybody of what c u r a t i v e i s necessary 

i n order t o put t h e i r production i n t o pay s t a t u s . 

Q. But once again, you don't want t o cure working-

i n t e r e s t defects before you d r i l l a w ell? 

A. Not n e c e s s a r i l y , somebody else's d e f e c t s , no. 

That's t h e i r r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . And u n t i l you have 

p r o d u c t i o n , there's no reason f o r us t o get i n v o l v e d w i t h 

somebody else's working i n t e r e s t . 

Q. You'd j u s t r a t h e r f o r c e pool them? 

A. No, i s the answer t o t h a t question. 

Q. What other prospects i s McElvain l o o k i n g a t i n 26 

North, 2 West. Are there any others besides t h i s w e l l ? 

A. We have leasehold i n t h a t township, and we 

c e r t a i n l y have a g e o l o g i s t l o o k i n g a t the township as f a r 

as p o t e n t i a l development. 

Q. Over the next, say, year t o two years do you have 
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any other plans t o d r i l l w e l l s i n t h i s township, or i n 25 

North, 2 West, immediately south of t h i s ? 

A. I don't know. 

Q. W i l l your engineer know? 

A. Perhaps. I mean, as I mentioned, we're l o o k i n g 

a t the area, so — 

Q. You've d r i l l e d or plan t o d r i l l what? Just 

immediately t o the south i n Section 3 of 25 North, 2 West, 

or you maybe already have — 

A. Section 4, we're c u r r e n t l y d r i l l i n g i n Section 4. 

Q. You're c u r r e n t l y d r i l l i n g i n Section 4. A 

Mesaverde well? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what about Section 3? 

A. Section 3, we've p r e v i o u s l y d r i l l e d i n Section 3. 

Q. Just one well? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Section 10 also? 

A. Yes, we r e c e n t l y d r i l l e d i n Section 10 of the 

township t o the south. 

Q. Any other plans i n the work i n 25 North, 2 West? 

A. I t h i n k our f u t u r e plans are, you know, are 

d i s c r e t i o n a r y , and w e ' l l d i v u l g e t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n i n due 

course, but I don't b e l i e v e we should be r e q u i r e d t o 

d i v u l g e any f u t u r e plans t h a t we have f o r t h i s area. 

STEVEN T. 
(505) 

BRENNER, CCR 
989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

33 

Q. Well, I ' d ask the question again. I t h i n k i t 

bears on r i s k involved i n t h i s prospect. I f you're 

pla n n i n g on d r i l l i n g a number of w e l l s , then you don't 

consider i t t h a t r i s k y . 

A. Well, I would defer t o our engineer as f a r as 

r i s k . Risk i s outside my parameters and knowledge and 

e x p e r t i s e . 

Q. Okay, but land matters aren't? 

A. Right. So you might d i r e c t a l l of those 

questions t o our engineer who's — 

Q. Well, I mean from my knowledge of the o i l and gas 

business, the f i r s t one who knows i s the — the g e o l o g i s t 

t e l l s t h e landman --

MR. CARR: Objection. I b e l i e v e Mr. Bruce i s 

g i v i n g a c l o s i n g statement a t t h i s p o i n t i n time. He can 

ask land questions of t h i s witness. He shouldn't be asking 

him t o speculate about what t h e i r plans are or t h i n g s t h a t 

t h i s witness says he's not q u a l i f i e d t o t e s t i f y t o . He can 

d i r e c t i t t o the engineer. 

We know — We w i l l s t i p u l a t e he has experience i n 

the business, but I t h i n k t h a t should be announced i n h i s 

c l o s i n g statement, not as p a r t of h i s cross-examination. 

Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Well, Mr. Jordan, do you have 

t i t l e opinions i n the work on any other lands i n 2 6 North, 

2 West or 2 5 North, 2 West? 
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A. I ' d r a t h e r not d i v u l g e t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n . 

MR. BRUCE: Well, Mr. Examiner, I'm going t o ask 

him, because I want t o know — 

MR. CARR: I w i l l o b j e c t t o the question on 

relevance. We're t a l k i n g about a compulsory p o o l i n g 

a p p l i c a t i o n on a s p e c i f i c t r a c t . This doesn't mean t h a t 

every plan they have i n the area should be su b j e c t t o 

j u s t — 

MR. BRUCE: And I'm not asking f o r — 

MR. CARR: — meander through the records of 

McElvain. 

MR. BRUCE: And I'm not asking f o r every w e l l , 

I'm not asking f o r w e l l l o c a t i o n s , but I would l i k e t o 

know, do they have two, t h r e e , f o u r , f i v e , s i x w e l l s 

planned i n t h i s area over the next year or two? And i f so, 

I t h i n k t h a t bears on the r i s k i n v o l v e d . I f th e y ' r e going 

t o get up and say t h a t t h i s i s j u s t an extremely h i g h - r i s k 

o p p o r t u n i t y here, then I won't b e l i e v e i t . 

MR. CARR: I don't see how f u t u r e plans, whether 

or not they m a t e r i a l i z e or not, should be then somehow 

r e t r o a c t i v e l y a p p l i e d t o r i s k i n t h i s w e l l . I f t h i s w e l l 

i s a dry hole, f u t u r e plans can — 

MR. BRUCE: Well, by Mr. — 

MR. CARR: They've admitted they've developed i n 

the area, they're l o o k i n g a t the area. Beyond t h a t , none 
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of t h i s i s r e l e v a n t as t o whether or not t h e r e i s r i s k 

associated w i t h t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l . 

MR. BRUCE: Well, but Mr. Carr's own — by t h a t 

l o g i c , then the only t h i n g we should be l o o k i n g a t i s a map 

of Section 33 w i t h respect t o geology, or the south h a l f of 

Section 33, because nothing else matters. 

MR. CARR: And I would suggest t h a t as t o the 

compulsory p o o l i n g of the south h a l f of 33, t h a t j u s t might 

be c o r r e c t , because t h a t ' s the issue t h a t you're being 

asked t o decide. 

(Off the record) 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay, I'm going t o ask a 

question. Do you plan f u r t h e r development i n the area 

generally? 

THE WITNESS: We are — Well, g e n e r a l l y , we are 

l o o k i n g a t the area, Mr. Ashley, and as Mr. Carr r e f e r r e d , 

every w e l l — you know, by d r i l l i n g a w e l l , t h a t could 

change e v e r y t h i n g , r e a l l y . I mean, we're d r i l l i n g one w e l l 

a t a time. We're not going out and d r i l l i n g m u l t i p l e 

w e l l s . And based on what happens i n each w e l l we d r i l l , 

has a d i r e c t relevance on our f u t u r e plans. We c e r t a i n l y 

are l o o k i n g a t the area because we do have leasehold i n 

t h i s general area. What our f u t u r e plans are, are 

d e f i n i t e l y up i n the a i r . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay, w e ' l l leave i t a t t h a t , 
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then. 

MR. BRUCE: I have nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. 

MR. CARR: Nothing f u r t h e r of t h i s witness. 

MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: I've got a few questions. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER ASHLEY: 

Q. I don't have a c l e a r understanding from E x h i b i t 2 

of who a c t u a l l y has j o i n e d or agreed t o be pooled — 

A. Okay, a l l r i g h t . 

Q. — and who has — and are t h e r e any of t h e 

working i n t e r e s t s here t h a t you have not had any contact 

w i t h a t a l l ? 

A. Okay, I ' l l go down the l i s t . Beginning w i t h 

Energen, we've discussed our contacts w i t h them. 

Noseco Corporation, we've had contact w i t h them. 

They have, i n f a c t , signed the op e r a t i n g agreement and are 

v o l u n t a r i l y j o i n i n g i n the w e l l as a nonconsenting working 

i n t e r e s t owner. 

Neumann Family Trust also has signed the 

op e r a t i n g agreement and has ele c t e d nonconsent s t a t u s , so 

they have v o l u n t a r i l y j o i n e d i n t h i s w e l l . 

Gavilan Dome Pr o p e r t i e s , Mesa Grande Resources, 

NM&O Operating Company and Johansen Energy P a r t n e r s h i p , a l l 
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of which own a working i n t e r e s t i n t h a t f e d e r a l lease i n 

the n o r t h h a l f of the southeast q u a r t e r , have not 

v o l u n t a r i l y j o i n e d i n the w e l l . 

And again, the Apache Corporation i n t e r e s t has 

been acquired by McElvain. 

Q. Okay. And then what about Williams and Dugan? 

A. Williams has a reve r s i o n a r y working i n t e r e s t , and 

I have spoken on several occasions w i t h t h e i r landman. And 

i n the past they have signed the operating agreement, but 

i n t h i s case they s a i d w e ' l l j u s t a l l ow our i n t e r e s t t o be 

under the compulsory p o o l i n g hearing, b a s i c a l l y . 

Q. Okay. 

A. Dugan Production Company, I've spoken w i t h t h e i r 

landman numerous times as w e l l , both i n regards t o t h i s 

proposal and other of our proposals i n the area, and w e l l s 

t h a t we have d r i l l e d , and have discussed the f a c t t h a t 

t h e r e appears t h a t they may have a r e v e r - — or a 

reassignment r i g h t i n t h i s acreage. And they — I t a l k e d 

t o them about a week ago, was the l a s t conversation, and 

they s a i d they're j u s t going t o go ahead and l e t t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t be force-pooled, t h a t they d i d n ' t see any other 

advantage t o them t o do anything else i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

case. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. I have n o t h i n g f u r t h e r . 

Thank you, Mr. Jordan. 
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THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Carr, could you — and Mr. 

Bruce and Mr. Hall? 

(Off the record) 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Examiner, a t t h i s 

time we would c a l l John Steuble, S-t-e-u-b-l-e. 

JOHN STEUBLE. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARR: 

Q. Would you s t a t e your name f o r the re c o r d , please? 

A. John Steuble. 

Q. Where do you reside? 

A. Denver, Colorado. 

Q. By whom are you employed? 

A. McElvain O i l and Gas P r o p e r t i e s . 

Q. And what i s your p o s i t i o n w i t h McElvain? 

A. Engineering manager. 

Q. Mr. Steuble, have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before 

t h i s D i v i s i o n and had your c r e d e n t i a l s as an expert i n 

petroleum engineering accepted and made a matter of record? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n f i l e d i n 

t h i s case? 
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A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Have you made an engineering study of th e area 

which i s the subject of t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And are you prepared t o share the r e s u l t s of your 

work w i t h the Examiner? 

A. Yes, I am. 

MR. CARR: Are the witness's q u a l i f i c a t i o n s 

acceptable? 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: They are. 

Q. (By Mr. Carr) Let's go t o what has been marked 

f o r i d e n t i f i c a t i o n as McElvain E x h i b i t Number 5. I would 

ask you t o i d e n t i f y t h a t and review i t f o r Mr. Ashley. 

A. Yes, t h i s i s a map showing the w e l l s t h a t have 

produced or are producing out of the Mesaverde f o r m a t i o n . 

I t shows the i n i t i a l p o t e n t i a l of the i n d i v i d u a l w e l l s and 

the cumulative production as of 5-31-99. 

The other t h i n g i t shows i s our proposed 

l o c a t i o n , the Cougar Com 33-1, and the very sparse d r i l l i n g 

f o r Mesaverde i n t h i s area. Therefore, because of the 

sparse d r i l l i n g i t also i s k i n d of a v i s u a l assessment of 

the r i s k i n v o l v e d i n the area. 

Q. Let's go now t o McElvain E x h i b i t Number 6. 

I d e n t i f y and review t h i s , please. 

A. E x h i b i t Number 6 — And I should e x p l a i n t h a t 
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t h i s i s included because the w e l l i s p e r m i t t e d t o the 

Dakota form a t i o n , so I prepared E x h i b i t Number 6 t o show 

the p e n e t r a t i o n s i n the Dakota formation. What I d i d f i n d 

was t h a t t h e r e are three commingled pools i n the area and 

not a s i n g l e Dakota producer i n d i v i d u a l l y . A l l of the 

i n f o r m a t i o n here, again, i s as of 5-31-99. I t shows the 

i n i t i a l p o t e n t i a l r a t e and the cumulative p r o d u c t i o n . But 

I must s t r e s s t h a t the cumulative p r o d u c t i o n i s out of the 

va r i o u s producing horizons, not j u s t the Dakota. 

Q. Are you prepared t o make a recommendation t o the 

Examiner concerning the r i s k t h a t should be assessed 

against i n t e r e s t owners who do not v o l u n t a r i l y p a r t i c i p a t e 

i n the w e l l ? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And what i s tha t ? 

A. Two hundred percent. 

Q. And summarize the basis f o r t h a t recommendation. 

A. Because we're going t o the Dakota, and you can 

see t h a t t h e r e are very few Dakota p e n e t r a t i o n s i n the 

area, t h i s i s b a s i c a l l y a w i l d c a t play, and t h a t amount of 

r i s k i s not unreasonable f o r a w i l d c a t . 

Q. Do you b e l i e v e there i s a chance you could d r i l l 

a w e l l a t the proposed l o c a t i o n t h a t would not be a 

commercial success? 

A. D e f i n i t e l y . 
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Q. Has McElvain d r i l l e d other Mesaverde w e l l s i n the 

area? 

A. Yes, we have. 

Q. Could you i d e n t i f y and review what has been 

marked as McElvain E x h i b i t Number 7? 

A. Number 7 i s the AFE I prepared back i n September 

f o r the Cougar Com 33-1. I t assumes t h a t i t w i l l be a 

Dakota completion. 

Q. And d i d you get the t o t a l s on t h a t ? I'm having a 

hard time hearing you. 

A. Oh, I'm so r r y . The dryhole cost came up t o 

$325,750. The completed w e l l cost i s $709,430. 

Q. Are these i n l i n e w i t h what's been charged f o r 

other s i m i l a r w e l l s i n the area? 

A. Yes. I might add one t h i n g . Since I've done the 

AFE, d r i l l i n g costs have gone up somewhat, and pipe p r i c e s 

have gone up a t l e a s t three times, i f not more. 

Q. Have you made an estimate of the overhead and 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e costs t o be i n c u r r e d w h i l e d r i l l i n g the w e l l 

and also w h i l e producing i t i f i t i s a successful w e l l ? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And what are those numbers? 

A. $5484 a month f o r the d r i l l i n g and $548 a month 

f o r the opera t i n g . 

Q. Are these the f i g u r e s t h a t are set f o r t h i n the 
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JOA? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. Are these the same f i g u r e s t h a t were approved by 

the D i v i s i o n i n Order Number R-11,247, entered on September 

the 9th of t h i s year, p o o l i n g the n o r t h h a l f of Section 10, 

f o r a w e l l t o the Mesaverde? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. Do you recommend t h a t these f i g u r e s be 

inco r p o r a t e d i n t o the order t h a t r e s u l t s from today's 

hearing? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Does McElvain request t h a t these r a t e s be 

increased i n accordance w i t h e s c a l a t i o n of p r o v i s i o n s of 

COPAS accounting procedures? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does McElvain O i l and Gas P r o p e r t i e s , I n c . , also 

seek t o be designated operator of the proposed w e l l ? 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. I n your o p i n i o n , w i l l the g r a n t i n g of t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n and the d r i l l i n g of the w e l l as proposed be i n 

the best i n t e r e s t of conservation and the p r e v e n t i o n of 

waste and the p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

A. Yes, I b e l i e v e so. 

Q. Were E x h i b i t s 5 through 7 prepared by you or 

compiled under your d i r e c t i o n ? 
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A. Yes, they were. 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Examiner, we would 

move th e admission i n t o evidence of McElvain E x h i b i t s 5 

through 7. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: E x h i b i t s 5 through 7 w i l l be 

admitted as evidence a t t h i s time. 

MR. CARR: And t h a t concludes my d i r e c t 

examination of Mr. Steuble. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Hall? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Mr. Steuble, you may or may not have been pleased 

t o hear t h a t your land manager i s d e f e r r i n g questions of 

economic r i s k t o you. Can you t e l l the Examiner why i t i s 

the farmout proposal o f f e r e d by Energen d i d not s a t i s f y 

McElvain's economic c r i t e r i o n f o r t h i s ? 

A. I would l i k e t o make two comments on t h a t , i f I 

may. F i r s t , t h i s i s not the forum or the place t o be 

dis c u s s i n g i n t e r n a l economics f o r the c o r p o r a t i o n . Second, 

i f Energen would j o i n us i n d r i l l i n g of the w e l l , we would 

be more than happy. But what Energen was o f f e r i n g was less 

than they would have i f they j o i n e d the w e l l . There's no 

economic b e n e f i t f o r McElvain t o accept t h a t farmout 

agreement. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Can you answer my questio n , though, 
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please, s i r ? My question i s , can you t e l l us why the 

i n t e r e s t brought t o the t a b l e by Energen d i d not s a t i s f y 

McElvain's economic c r i t e r i o n ? 

A. I j u s t d i d . 

Q. What i s McElvain's economic c r i t e r i o n ? 

A. I don't t h i n k t h a t ' s appropriate f o r t h i s forum, 

I mean, any more than we would ask Amoco what t h e i r 

economic c r i t e r i a i s . The p o i n t i s t h a t Energen, not 

w i l l i n g t o j o i n us i n d r i l l i n g the w e l l , o f f e r e d us a 

farmout t h a t was of less i n t e r e s t t o us than they would 

have i f they d i d j o i n i n the w e l l . What's our — Why would 

we do t h a t ? 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, I would ask t h a t you 

d i r e c t the witness t o answer the question. We've had two 

witnesses now o f f e r you opinion testimony w i t h respect t o 

the economic c r i t e r i o n f o r the w e l l , and i t has a d i r e c t 

bearing on whether or not t h e i r e f f o r t s t o secure v o l u n t a r y 

j o i n d e r were done i n good i n f a i t h , whether they meet the 

requirements of the s t a t u t e . 

MR. CARR: Mr. Examiner, I do not b e l i e v e t h a t an 

operator i s r e q u i r e d , when they come i n t o pool someone, t o 

go through the d e t a i l s of t h e i r in-house economic c r i t e r i a , 

t he standards by which they judge whether or not they can 

go forward, based on t h e i r own i n t e r n a l business d e c i s i o n s 

and business c r i t e r i a , whether or not they can go forward 
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w i t h a w e l l . They have t o come before you and show they've 

made a g o o d - f a i t h e f f o r t t o reach a v o l u n t a r y agreement. 

Mr. Steuble has j u s t t e s t i f i e d t h a t Energen came 

i n and could have p a r t i c i p a t e d i n the w e l l , but what they 

have been w i l l i n g t o do i s s u b s t a n t i a l l y l ess economically 

f o r McElvain than j u s t simply p a r t i c i p a t i n g . 

McElvain has a r i g h t t o say, We're going forward 

w i t h t he w e l l , you won't j o i n , you want t o come i n and get 

more or give us les s , and we're not able t o do t h a t w i t h o u t 

having t o come i n here and going t o the i n t e r n a l economic 

c r i t e r i a t h a t they are using in-house based on t h e i r own 

costs and a l l s o r t s of p r o p r i e t a r y f a c t o r s . I f t h a t ' s the 

standard you want t o e s t a b l i s h r i g h t now, the very f i r s t 

time Energen w i l l be i n here, I can assure you, w e ' l l be 

asking f o r every b i t of i n t e r n a l c r i t e r i a they use and how 

they i n t e r n a l l y evaluate prospects, t h a t t h a t i s an 

i n a p p r o p r i a t e standard. 

The standard i s whether or not they t r i e d t o 

reach an agreement, the answer i s obviously no. And the 

exp l a n a t i o n i s , they want t o come i n on less than what i t 

would be i f they j u s t p a r t i c i p a t e d , and they can't do t h a t . 

MR. HALL: Nevertheless, Mr. Examiner, they 

o f f e r e d testimony on t h a t issue i n t h e i r d i r e c t case. They 

have opened the door t o i t . We're e n t i t l e d t o i n q u i r e . 

They have waived t h e i r o b j e c t i o n . 
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MR. CARR:: I do not t h i n k t h a t ' s r i g h t . I t h i n k 

you can say i t doesn't meet our economic c r i t e r i a , w i t h o u t 

then having t o go through i t chapter and verse. The issue 

i s n ' t economic c r i t e r i a . The issue i s , have they reached a 

v o l u n t a r y agreement? I s somebody t r y i n g t o get i n f o r less 

than what i t would be i f they simply p a r t i c i p a t e d ? We 

haven't reached an agreement f o r t h a t reason. That's the 

issue. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Steuble, i s t h i s i n t e r n a l 

c r i t e r i a considered p r o p r i e t a r y by McElvain? 

THE WITNESS: I would say so, yes. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. Mr. H a l l , you s a i d t h a t 

they have already brought f o r t h t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n a t a 

previous time? 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, i n f a c t , they have 

o f f e r e d testimony w i t h respect t o economic c r i t e r i a through 

t h e i r land manager i n t h i s case today. The land manager 

could not t e l l us what the economic c r i t e r i o n was, and he 

def e r r e d questions of t h a t nature t o the engineering 

witness. That's why we're making i n q u i r y of the 

engineering witness now. There was no o b j e c t i o n made a t 

the time, and we were promised t h a t they would be b r i n g i n g 

evidence forward on t h a t issue. Now they're r e f u s i n g . 

MR. CARR: I would submit t h a t Mr. H a l l i s 

reading a l o t i n t o the testimony t h a t simply wasn't t h e r e . 
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He asked the land witness, he said he d i d n ' t know, maybe 

the engineering witness would know. That was the scope of 

the testimony. He d i d n ' t t e s t i f y t o i t , he s a i d he 

cou l d n ' t . 

MR. HALL:: Regardless, Mr. Examiner, i t was 

brought up i n the context of quest i o n i n g w i t h respect t o 

g o o d - f a i t h e f f o r t s t o secure v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r . I t ' s 

d i r e c t l y r e l e v a n t t o t h a t . The land witness could not 

t e s t i f y t o t h a t , he deferred t o the engineering witness. 

I t s t i l l r e l a t e s t o the same question. We're e n t i t l e d t o 

know. 

MR. CARR: We ob j e c t t o any question t h a t seeks 

p r o p r i e t a r y , in-house economic c r i t e r i a employed by 

McElvain t o evaluate t h e i r own proposals or n e g o t i a t i o n s 

w i t h other p a r t i e s . We bel i e v e i t i s p r o p r i e t a r y and i t 

goes beyond the issue before you, and t h a t i s whether or 

not the p a r t i e s have attempted t o reach a g o o d - f a i t h 

agreement. And when you have one p a r t y who wants t o come 

i n f o r s u b s t a n t i a l l y less than what i t would be i f they 

j u s t p a i d t h e i r way, i t c e r t a i n l y seems t o me t h a t — and 

the other p a r t y i s n ' t w i l l i n g t o do t h a t , t h a t t h a t 

standard has been met, and we ob j e c t t o these questions. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. H a l l , what purpose would i t 

serve t o have t h i s information? What purpose would i t 

serve t o you t o have t h i s information? 
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MR. HALL:: Well, i t r e l a t e s d i r e c t l y t o the 

questions we put forward t o the land witness, whether or 

not McElvain's e f f o r t s t o secure Energen's v o l u n t a r y 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n were done i n good f a i t h , f r a n k l y , Mr. 

Examiner. They have o f f e r e d testimony t h a t they thought i t 

was. 

We made i n q u i r y , Well, what are your standards 

f o r t h a t ? 

We don't know. 

Well, does i t meet your economic c r i t e r i a ? 

I don't know, the land witness s a i d , but the 

engineering witness w i l l know, and he can t e s t i f y on t h a t . 

That's why we're making the i n q u i r y . 

MR. CARR: Then an appropriate question would be, 

does i t meet your economic c r i t e r i a ? And the answer would 

be no. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: And t h a t ' s what Mr. — You 

answered t h a t question. 

THE WITNESS: I answered t h a t question. 

(Off the record) 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Carr, I w i l l s u s t a i n your 

o b j e c t i o n , t h a t p r o p r i e t a r y i n f o r m a t i o n i s p a r t of every 

company's way of doing business, and we're not going t o get 

i n t o t h a t . 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Mr. Steuble, l e t me ask you, can 
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you e x p l a i n t o the Hearing Examiner why the — Let me 

rephrase the question. 

I s n ' t i t t r u e , Mr. Steuble, t h a t Energen o f f e r e d 

t o b r i n g t o the deal a net revenue burden a f t e r payout f o r 

t h e i r i n t e r e s t of only .2929 percent, or do you know? 

A. I don't know. 

Q. I s t h e r e any other witness here t h a t can t e s t i f y 

today about the n e g o t i a t i o n s between Energen and McElvain? 

A. I t h i n k there's an Energen f e l l o w here. 

Q. Any other McElvain witnesses? 

A. I don't b e l i e v e so. 

Q. I s n ' t i t t r u e , Mr. Steuble, t h a t Energen o f f e r e d 

t o b r i n g a net revenue i n t e r e s t burden t o the deal f i n a l l y 

of .2929 percent, and McElvain demanded a net revenue 

i n t e r e s t burden of only .1468 percent, or do you know? 

A. I have not run those numbers, I do not know. 

Q. Are you able t o t e s t i f y why the d i f f e r e n c e 

between those two proposals, b a s i c a l l y a .1468-percent 

i n t e r e s t , would not s a t i s f y McElvain's economic c r i t e r i a 

f o r the w e l l ? 

A. Answer, no. 

Q. I s t h e r e any other witness here t h a t can t e s t i f y 

t o t h a t today? 

A. Not t h a t I know of. 

Q. Can you t e s t i f y whether i t ' s necessary f o r 
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McElvain t o have a 200-percent r i s k p e nalty on Energen's 

i n t e r e s t i n order t o s a t i s f y i t s economic c r i t e r i a f o r the 

w e l l ? 

A. Would you repeat t h a t , please? 

Q. W i l l McElvain proceed t o d r i l l the w e l l w i t h o u t a 

2 00-percent r i s k penalty or — on Energen's i n t e r e s t i n 

t h i s case? 

A. On Energen's i n t e r e s t ? 

Q. Yes. 

A. I would — L o g i c a l l y , I would t h i n k so. 

Accountingwise, t h a t would be a burden on the accounting 

people t o t r y and keep t r a c k of various r i s k p e n a l t i e s . 

And I guess t o answer your question, I don't know. There's 

a l o t more than j u s t Energen's i n t e r e s t or the p e n a l t y on 

the i n t e r e s t t h a t would have t o be evaluated. I do know 

t h a t accountingwise, i t ' s d i f f i c u l t t o keep t r a c k of 

m u l t i p l e p e n a l t i e s and who's backing i n and who's not 

backing i n and t h i n g s l i k e t h a t . 

Q. You've heard the land witness t e s t i f y t h i s 

morning t h a t McElvain does seek the 2 00-percent r i s k 

p e n a l t y i m p o s i t i o n on Energen's and a l l t he e n j o i n e d 

i n t e r e s t s ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . I also t e s t i f i e d t h a t — and I 

showed you the pool maps, E x h i b i t 5 and 6, showing the 

amount of w e l l s t h a t have been d r i l l e d i n t h e area, and 
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t h a t ' s why we're requesting the 2 00 percent. I t ' s not a 

development-type d r i l l i n g o p e r a t i o n , i t ' s a h i g h - r i s k 

o p e r a t i o n . And yes, I t h i n k we are e n t i t l e d t o the 200 

percent. 

Q. And you d i d an economics run on the w e l l w i t h and 

wi t h o u t 2 00-percent r i s k penalty burdens on the enjoined 

i n t e r e s t , I would cissume? 

A. I b e l i e v e I d i d , yes. 

Q. I f Energen were t o o f f e r a farmout of 100 percent 

of i t s i n t e r e s t , would t h a t be s u f f i c i e n t t o s a t i s f y 

McElvain? 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Examiner, i t seems 

t h a t Energen now i s attempting t o conduct t h e i r 

n e g o t i a t i o n s i n the context of the hearing. I t h i n k I can 

say f o r McElvain we w i l l , as we have been, continue be 

w i l l i n g t o discuss w i t h Energen v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r . But t o 

s i t here w i t h a witness and lop t h i n g s a t them and ask them 

t o make a commitment f o r t h e i r company i s not going t o 

work, and we ob j e c t t o the l i n e of que s t i o n i n g . 

MR. HALL: Well, the purpose of the question, Mr. 

Examiner, i s t o t e s t whether or not t h e i r e f f o r t s t o 

s o l i c i t Energen's j o i n d e r have been i n good f a i t h , f r a n k l y , 

and the testimony e s t a b l i s h e s already t h a t we're t a l k i n g 

about an i n f i n i t e s i m a l l y small burden on the economic 

prospects f o r the w e l l . I t ' s close t o a zero-percent 
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burden. I'm e n t i t l e d t o ask the witness whether or not he 

would accept a zero burden farmout from Energen. 

I t s t i l l has a bearing on whether or not t h e i r 

demands f o r a very small farmout burden are made i n good 

f a i t h . I t s t i l l bears on whether or not t h e i r demands 

s a t i s f y t h e i r economic c r i t e r i o n f o r the w e l l . 

I'm not e n t i t l e d , according t o your r u l i n g , t o 

make i n q u i r y about t h a t economic c r i t e r i a d i r e c t l y . I 

t h i n k I am e n t i t l e d t o get t o i t i n d i r e c t l y , t o see whether 

or not t h e i r e f f o r t s are s t i l l i n good f a i t h w i t h respect 

t o t h a t economic c r i t e r i a , whatever i t may be. That's why 

I'm e n t i t l e d t o ask the questions. 

MR. CARR: Mr. Examiner, before those questions 

can be asked, I t h i n k i t should be e s t a b l i s h e d whether or 

not Mr. Steuble i s a n e g o t i a t o r f o r the company or i s i n a 

p o s i t i o n t o even respond t o those. We're assuming t h a t 

he's got a l l kinds of s k i l l s and r o l e s and a b i l i t i e s t h a t 

have not been e s t a b l i s h e d . 

I t h i n k he should be asked, Do you n e g o t i a t e f o r 

your company? Are you i n a p o s i t i o n t o make those kinds of 

judgments? 

And those, i f they're answered i n the negative, I 

t h i n k would preclude t h i s . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Steuble? 

THE WITNESS: No, I do not n e g o t i a t e land deals 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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f o r our company. Yes, I do neg o t i a t e d r i l l i n g c o n t r a c t s by 

p r i c e s , t h i n g s l i k e t h a t . But as f a r as the land, I do 

not. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. 

MR. HALLt No f u r t h e r questions of th e witness. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Bruce? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Just a couple, Mr. Steuble. Your E x h i b i t 7, the 

AFE — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — and I won't hold you t o t h i s , but you s a i d , I 

t h i n k , t h a t the d r i l l i n g r i g costs have gone up and the 

cost of pipe has gone up since you prepared t h i s AFE. Do 

you have a b a l l p a r k f i g u r e what a completed w e l l cost would 

be? You know, 730, 740? 

A. I haven't added i t up? But I can t e l l you the 

d r i l l i n g costs are up about t h r e e d o l l a r s a f o o t , t h r e e t o 

fo u r d o l l a r s . 

Q. Three t o four d o l l a r s per foot ? 

A. Per f o o t , so t h a t would be an a d d i t i o n a l $2 6,000 

onto t h i s . 

Pipe p r i c e s , I t h i n k the 5 1/2 i s i n the $7.80 t o 

$7.90 range, so t h a t ' s gone up probably 50, 60 cents a 

f o o t . 
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The 9 5/8, I'm not sure. I t h i n k i t ' s up around 

$13 a f o o t 

And t u b i n g i s approaching $2.25 a f o o t . I 

haven't answered your question d i r e c t l y , but — 

Q. That's f i n e , but you're — But once again, you 

s a i d the surface casing has gone up 50 or 60 cents a f o o t , 

and then you s a i d t h a t — I s t h a t r i g h t ? And then the 

5 1/2 — or the — 

A. The surface casing has probably gone up a d o l l a r 

t o two d o l l a r s a f o o t . 

Q. Okay. 

A. The 5 1/2 has gone up about 60 cents a f o o t . 

Q. Okay. That's f i n e , I j u s t wondered what the 

estimates were. 

And then on your E x h i b i t 5, there's a w e l l i n 

Section 34, 26 North, 2 West. I s t h a t McElvain's w e l l ? 

A. Yes, t h a t i s . 

Q. Has i t produced yet? 

A. Yes, i t has. 

Q. What are i t s c u r r e n t rates? 

A. I t s c u r r e n t r a t e s are 150 MCF a day and 4 0 

b a r r e l s of water a day. 

Q. And then the w e l l i n the northwest q u a r t e r of 

Section 3, t h a t i s a McElvain well? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. Okay, and those are the c u r r e n t r a t e s and 

cumulative production f i g u r e s ? 

A. That — As of 5-31. 

Q. Okay. The w e l l i n Section 4, has t h a t been 

completed? 

A. No, we are j u s t d r i l l i n g i t . 

Q. C u r r e n t l y d r i l l i n g ? 

A. C u r r e n t l y d r i l l i n g . 

Q. And then w e l l i n Section 10? 

A. The w e l l i n Section 10 has been d r i l l e d but not 

completed. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Excuse me, Mr. Bruce, what 

e x h i b i t are you lo o k i n g at? 

MR. BRUCE: I'm lo o k i n g a t E x h i b i t 5, the 

Mesaverde map. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. 

MR. BRUCE: And although i t ' s not marked on 

t h e r e , Mr. Examiner, there i s a w e l l i n Section 4, 25 

North, 2 West, being d r i l l e d . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: And what's the approximate — 

Have you got a u n i t l e t t e r f o r t h a t , or can you — 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Jordan probably knows o f f the top 

of h i s head. The u n i t l e t t e r f o r the w e l l i n Section 3? 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Four. 

THE WITNESS: Probably G. 
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MR. BRUCE: Or 4. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: I n Section 4? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. And t h a t ' s c u r r e n t l y 

being d r i l l e d , you said? 

MR. BRUCE: That's what Mr. Steuble s a i d , t h a t 

t h a t one i s c u r r e n t l y d r i l l i n g . 

And then there's a w e l l d r i l l e d but not completed 

i n Section 10. 

THE WITNESS: That's also i n the no r t h e a s t 

q u a r t e r . 

MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have, Mr. Steuble. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Carr? 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARR: 

Q. Mr. Steuble, does McElvain have a lease e x p i r i n g 

on December 23rd i n t h i s spacing u n i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does McElvain request t h a t the order i n the case 

be expedited? 

A. Yes, we do. 

MR. CARR: That's a l l I have. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER ASHLEY: 

Q. Mr. Steuble, when does the lease expire? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. December 2 3rd. 

Q. I n E x h i b i t 5, we j u s t t a l k e d about the w e l l s , 

f o u r a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s , t h a t McElvain operates or i s 

d r i l l i n g --

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — a t t h i s time. And those are a l l Mesaverde 

wells ? 

A. Those are a l l Mesaverde w e l l s . And f o r 

c l a r i f i c a t i o n , the Cougar Com w e l l , the one we're having 

the hearing on, i s going t o the Dakota. So i t i s termed a 

Basin-Dakota w e l l because i t ' s not w i t h i n any other of the 

pool r u l e s . 

Q. Okay. And I understand t h i s w e l l i s als o i n a 

nonstandard l o c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r . I t was a nonstandard — We have 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e approval on t h a t f o r the Basin-Dakota 

nonstandard, and i t was nonstandard due t o a r c h e o l o g i c a l 

f i n d s i n the area. 

Q. What was the proposed TD f o r t h i s w e l l ? 

A. 8400 f e e t . 

Q. Of the e x h i b i t s t h a t you have submitted, I don't 

r e a l l y see anything t h a t shows any geology out t h e r e . How 

come t h e r e aren't any s t r u c t u r e maps or isopach maps or 

cross-sections or anything so t h a t — 

A. There's a reason f o r t h a t . 
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Q. Okay, can you t e l l me? 

A. I f you look on the E x h i b i t 6 — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — these are Dakota p e n e t r a t i o n s i n t h e area. 

Q. Uh-huh. 

A. I t would be more than d i f f i c u l t t o come up w i t h 

any k i n d of s t r u c t u r e , given the — I mean, t h a t ' s what we 

were saying, t h i s -•- Because we're going t o the Dakota, and 

because t h a t ' s our primary t a r g e t , i t ' s k i n d of a shot i n 

the dark. 

But we f e l t , because we are d r i l l i n g Mesaverdes 

i n the area, we have t o a t l e a s t t r y t o evaluate the Dakota 

i n one of the w e l l s . And geologicwise, one l o c a t i o n i s no 

d i f f e r e n t than the other. 

Q. And on E x h i b i t 5, these are j u s t Mesaverde wells? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. So you have some c o n t r o l there? 

A. On the Mesaverde. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay, thank you. I have 

no t h i n g f u r t h e r . 

MR. CARR: That concludes our p r e s e n t a t i o n i n 

t h i s case. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: We c a l l Reg Corcoran t o the stand a t 

t h i s time. 
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RICHARD CORCORAN, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. For the record, please s t a t e your name, s i r . 

A. Richard Corcoran. 

Q. Mr. Corcoran, where do you l i v e and by whom are 

you employed? 

A. I l i v e i n Farmington, New Mexico, and I'm 

employed by Energen Resources Corporation. 

Q. And i n what capacity? 

A. As t h e i r d i s t r i c t landman. 

Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

D i v i s i o n — 

A. I have. 

Q. — or one. of i t s Examiners and had your 

c r e d e n t i a l s accepted as a matter of record? 

A. I have. 

Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n t h a t ' s 

been f i l e d i n t h i s case? 

A. I am f a m i l i a r . 

Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the lands and acreage 

t h a t are the subject of McElvain's A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes. 
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MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, are t h e witness's 

c r e d e n t i a l s acceptable? 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: They are. 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Mr. Corcoran, l e t ' s see i f we 

can't e s t a b l i s h a c e r t a i n chronology w i t h respect t o the 

events here today. Let's look a t your packet of e x h i b i t s , 

please, s i r . 

Let me ask you some questions w i t h respect t o 

McElvain's n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h you t o secure Energen's 

j o i n d e r i n the w e l l proposal. What does Energen understand 

the proposed target, i n t e r v a l t o be f o r McElvain's w e l l ? 

A. The primary t a r g e t was the Dakota. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Did McElvain ever discuss a 

completion i n any other i n t e r v a l other than the Dakota? 

A. Not as a primary o b j e c t i v e , perhaps as a b a i l ­

out . 

Q. A l l the AFE m a t e r i a l s , cost m a t e r i a l s you've been 

provided by McElvain are only f o r a Dakota completion; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. There's been no other m a t e r i a l s e s t a b l i s h i n g the 

a l l o c a t i o n of costs f o r a Dakota and Mesaverde completion, 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Not t o my knowledge. 

Q. What i s Energen's p o s i t i o n w i t h respect t o the 
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unorthodox w e l l l o c a t i o n requested? 

A. We had no o b j e c t i o n t o t h a t , and so i n d i c a t e d i n 

our waiver. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And does Energen have a p o s i t i o n w i t h 

respect t o the estimated d r i l l i n g and completion costs f o r 

the Dakota completion? 

A. We thought i t was i n l i n e . We d i d n ' t have any-

problem w i t h i t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And you don't o b j e c t t o the 

de s i g n a t i o n of McElvain as operator f o r the proposed w e l l ? 

A. No problem. 

Q. Mr. Corcoran, how long have you p r a c t i c e d as a 

landman i n the San Juan Basin? 

A. I n the San Juan Basin, approximately 13 years. 

Twenty-two years i n a l l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And can you estimate f o r the Examiner 

how many w e l l s , approximately, you've p a r t i c i p a t e d i n 

n e g o t i a t i o n s on? 

A. Someplace under a hundred, 75 t o a hundred, 

approximately. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , I n t h i s case, Mr. Corcoran, i n your 

o p i n i o n , do you b e l i e v e t h a t McElvain made a good f a i t h 

e f f o r t t o o b t a i n Energen's v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n t h i s 

w e l l ? 

A. I do not. 
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Q. And why not? 

A. Why not i s because we had i n i t i a l l y suggested 

terms t h a t were terms t h a t McElvain had used i n the past 

w i t h us, and i n t u r n , we had used the same terms on a w e l l 

they d r i l l e d c a l l e d the S e i f e r t , or recompleted, up i n 

Section 22 of t h i s same township and range. 

However, before even w r i t i n g t h e farmout, I had a 

conversation w i t h Mr. Jordan, and he advised me t h a t he 

d i d n ' t t h i n k those terms would be acceptable. To which we 

turned around and reduced them s i g n i f i c a n t l y . We went from 

d e l i v e r i n g a 75-percent net revenue t o d e l i v e r i n g a 78.75-

percent net revenue and changing the a f t e r payout from 40-

percent working i n t e r e s t t o 2 5-percent working i n t e r e s t , 

which are s i g n i f i c a n t changes i n terms t h a t we had done 

before. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s put these n e g o t i a t i o n s i n the 

context of dates. Why don't we look a t your E x h i b i t Number 

1? Can you i d e n t i f y t h a t ? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s McElvain's o r i g i n a l w e l l proposal, 

along w i t h t h e i r AFE. 

Q. And t h a t was the f i r s t proposal made t o you; i t 

was the w r i t t e n proposal; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I t ' s dated September 1, 1999? 

A. Right. 
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Q. What i s E x h i b i t 2, 3 and 4? 

A. That's the a p p l i c a t i o n f o r a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

approval of an unorthodox l o c a t i o n f o r t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

w e l l , which we went ahead and waived any o b j e c t i o n t o . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I t shows t h a t you received t h a t i n 

Farmington on October 8th, 1999, on the face of E x h i b i t 2 

there? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. There was some problem w i t h the n o t i f i c a t i o n 

shown on E x h i b i t 3. Then on E x h i b i t 4 t h e r e , i s t h a t 

Energen's waiver --

A. Yes. 

Q. — dated October 25, 1999? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t , the same — b a s i c a l l y t he same 

day we received the c o r r e c t i o n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . T e l l the Hearing Examiner what was 

being negotiated during t h a t s p e c i f i c time frame, l a t e 

September or l a t e October. 

A. We — I sat down — A f t e r having r e c e i v e d t h e i r 

proposal, I suggested t h a t we farm out our i n t e r e s t , r a t h e r 

than j o i n or be pooled and was w a i t i n g t o hear back from 

them as t o the v i a b i l i t y of t h a t . And i n a d i s c u s s i o n 

about another w e l l i t was mentioned t h a t they may not be 

acceptable, but they would get back t o me. 

Next t h i n g I received was t h i s October — or 
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these various waiver l e t t e r s , which we signed. Then the 

next t h i n g we received, as i s i n d i c a t e d i n the e x h i b i t s , i s 

the A p p l i c a t i o n f o r poo l i n g . 

Q. You're r e f e r r i n g t o E x h i b i t 5? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And you received t h a t on November 2, 1999; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And the date of the A p p l i c a t i o n i s October 25, 

1999? 

A. Right, the same day we waived our — any 

o b j e c t i o n t o the unorthodox l o c a t i o n . 

Then two days l a t e r , I began w r i t i n g a farmout 

l e t t e r t o convey the terms t h a t I f e l t were going t o be 

acceptable, as i s set out i n our E x h i b i t Number 6. And as 

i s i d e n t i f i e d i n my l e t t e r — 

Q. And f o r the record, t h a t ' s the l e t t e r from you, 

dated November 4, 1999? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , E x h i b i t Number 6. I t simply sets 

out t h a t we would change our proposal t o provide f o r our 

r e t e n t i o n of a 2-1/2-percent o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y , 

c o n v e r t i b l e t o a 25-percent working i n t e r e s t a f t e r payout, 

a l l being p r o p o r t i o n a t e l y reduced. A 2-1/2-percent 

o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y , i n t h i s case, equates t o a .2929 

percent o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y . I mean, we're t a l k i n g about 
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less than t h r e e - t e n t h s of a percent o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y . 

They r e j e c t e d t h a t and s a i d , no, t h a t was not 

acceptable, but a h a l f of t h a t would be acceptable, i f 

t h e r e was no back-in, which we decided no. The back-in 

should not a f f e c t the economics of the w e l l u n t i l they have 

recovered a l l of t h e i r d r i l l i n g , equipping and producing 

costs. And u n t i l t h a t time, the back-in would be a non-

issue. So we were saying yes, we would l i k e t o r e t a i n a 

.29-percent o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y . 

As a l a s t - d i t c h e f f o r t on a phone conversation, I 

agreed w i t h them t h a t I would d e l i v e r an 80-percent net 

revenue i n t e r e s t , being a .14-percent o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y , 

provided t h a t a f t e r they recovered a l l of t h e i r c o s t s , t h a t 

we could then have a back-in, and we d i d n ' t get t h a t done. 

Q. That, you understood, was unagreeable t o — 

A. I understood t h a t was unagreeable. 

Q. — unagreeble t o McElvain? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. R e f e r r i n g back again, t o E x h i b i t 6 then, e a r l i e r 

you made reference t o the S e i f e r t Com Number 1 — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — and there's a reference t o t h a t on the f i r s t 

paragraph of E x h i b i t 6? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. That w e l l was the precedent f o r t h e f i r s t farmout 
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you proposed t o McElvain; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, i t was i n exchange. We were d r i l l i n g w e l l s 

i n another area whereby we needed McElvain t o g r a n t t o us a 

farmout, which they d i d under the terms t h a t they had 

es t a b l i s h e d . 

I n exchange, they needed our i n t e r e s t i n the 

S e i f e r t w e l l , which we d i d grant them under e x a c t l y t he 

same terms. Now, t h a t S e i f e r t w e l l happens t o be about, 

oh, two miles n o r t h of t h i s w e l l . I t , however, you know, 

f o r c l a r i f i c a t i o n purposes, I be l i e v e was a recompletion i n 

the Mesaverde, not a Dakota. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . But i n t h a t circumstance, those terms 

were acceptable t o McElvain — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — but not i n t h i s circumstance? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And we had asked some questions of McElvain, what 

they understood t o be the burden imposed on the prospect by 

the terms of the farmout t h a t Energen was asking and d i d n ' t 

get much of a response from them, but you r e c e n t l y — you 

r e f e r r e d t o the .29-percent u l t i m a t e o v e r r i d e burden, and 

t h a t ' s the p r o p o r t i o n a t e l y reduced i n t e r e s t ; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Right, on the e n t i r e w e l l , our i n t e r e s t t o r e t a i n 

a 2-1/2-percent o v e r r i d e would equate t o .29 percent. 
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Again, less than t h r e e - t e n t h s of a percent o v e r r i d e . We 

even went so f a r as saying, no, I would accept h a l f of 

t h a t , .14 6, I t h i n k i s what i t t u r n s out t o , percent 

o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t , provided t h a t t h e r e would be 

an e l e c t i o n f o r us t o convert t h a t i n t e r e s t t o a working 

i n t e r e s t , only a f t e r they had received — recouped a l l of 

t h e i r costs associated w i t h d r i l l i n g equipment f o r the 

w e l l . 

Q. What's your understanding why t h a t was not 

acceptable t o McElvain? 

A. My understanding i s , the reason i t was not 

acceptable t o McElvain i s t h a t the compulsory p o o l i n g would 

a l l o w them b e t t e r economics. 

Q. And by t h a t do you mean the 200-percent r i s k 

penalty? 

A. I'm so r r y , yeah, t h a t ' s what I'm r e f e r r i n g t o . 

Q. Mr. Corcoran, i n your o p i n i o n , and based on your 

experience as a landman, are the terms t h a t McElvain 

demanded f o r Energen's p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n the w e l l i n l i n e 

w i t h comparable prospects i n the San Juan Basin? 

A. No, I f e l t l i k e they were unreasonable. 

Q. Given the very small net revenue o v e r r i d i n g 

r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t r e t a i n e d under your farmout proposal t o 

McElvain, i s n ' t t h a t v i r t u a l l y the same as a 100-percent 

farmout t o them? 
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A. I t ' s r e a l close. The l a s t conversation we had 

represents 14/100 of a percent o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y . And you 

know, I walk away wondering about a w e l l t h a t would not be 

able t o take a burden of 14/100 of a percent. 

Q. Okay. So the only d i f f e r e n c e of o p i n i o n between 

McElvain and Energen, as f a r as we can t e l l , i s the 

d i f f e r e n c e between the .29 percent and the .14648 percent? 

We're t a l k i n g about a .14648-percent d i f f e r e n c e , and t h a t ' s 

a l l , c o r r e c t ? 

A. P r i o r t o payout, yes. But not — Now, t h e r e i s 

another d i f f e r e n c e t h a t ' s s i g n i f i c a n t , and t h a t ' s the 

a f t e r - p a y o u t i n t e r e s t . We f e l t l i k e we would do t h a t i n 

exchange f o r supporting the w e l l i n t h i s f a s h i o n , yes. 

Q. And i s the after-payout back-in i n t e r e s t t h a t 

Energen sought i n l i n e w i t h what's the custom and p r a c t i c e 

i n the San Juan Basin? 

A. I t i s . And i t only represents a t o t a l burden t o 

the w e l l a f t e r payout of 2.9 percent. We're t a l k i n g about 

we would have a 2.9-percent working i n t e r e s t i f we backed 

i n , i f and when a l l the costs were recouped. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i n your o p i n i o n and based on your 

experience, i s t h a t generous? 

A. I n my op i n i o n , t h a t was very generous. We t r i e d 

t o demonstrate our w i l l i n g n e s s t o work w i t h McElvain, i n 

p a r t , by a t t a c h i n g t h e i r operating agreement t o our 
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farmout, saying b a s i c a l l y , We'll take your whole same 

op e r a t i n g agreements t h a t you guys know what's i n t h e r e , 

you wrote i t , w e ' l l use i t , w e ' l l change two t h i n g s , and 

they were i n s i g n i f i c a n t t h i n g s . 

Q. And t h a t ' s what's attached t o your E x h i b i t 6, 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . Let's see, t h a t ' s my farmout, 

but the operating agreement i s not attached. I t ' s j u s t the 

f r o n t page of i t , the one I have. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I n your o p i n i o n , Mr. Corcoran, based 

on your experience as a p r o f e s s i o n a l landman i n the San 

Juan Basin, do McElvain's n e g o t i a t i o n e f f o r t s c o n s t i t u t e a 

g o o d - f a i t h e f f o r t t o secure Energen's v o l u n t a r y 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n t h i s well? 

A. I do not b e l i e v e i t d i d . 

Q. I n your opinion, does McElvain conduct f a l l below 

the standard t h a t applies t o San Juan Basin operators i n 

n e g o t i a t i n g i n v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n w e l l proposals? 

A. I t h i n k so. 

Q. Are you recommending t h a t McElvain's request f o r 

the compulsory j o i n d e r of Energen's i n t e r e s t be denied? 

A. I am. 

Q. And were E x h i b i t s 1 through 6 prepared by you or 

compiled a t your d i r e c t i o n ? 

A. They were. 
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MR. HALL: Move the admission of E x h i b i t s 1 

through 6. 

That concludes our d i r e c t of the witness. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: E x h i b i t s 1 through 6 w i l l be 

admitted as evidence a t t h i s time. 

Mr. Carr? 

MR. CARR: Mr. Bruce has a question — 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. 

MR. BRUCE: Just one question. 

CRO S S-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. You're t a l k i n g about e i t h e r a .2929-percent 

o v e r r i d e or — I f o r g e t the exact t h i n g , .14 or 6, roughly? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. That would be f o r the 320-acre w e l l u n i t ? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s on the e n t i r e spacing u n i t . 

Q. Okay, t h a t ' s a l l I have. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Carr? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CARR: 

Q. Mr. Corcoran, Energen's working i n t e r e s t i n the 

320 acres comprising the south h a l f of 33 i s the 11.718 

percent; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And i s t h a t ownership the same i n the Mesaverde 
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and t h e Dakota? 

A. Let's see, I looked a t i t . I b e l i e v e i t i s . 

Q. You don't have d i f f e r e n t ownership a t d i f f e r e n t 

depths i n t h i s w e l l , do you? 

A. Not t o my knowledge. 

Q. And the Mesaverde i s , t o your knowledge, above 

the Dakota, i s i t not? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. The w e l l was proposed, was i t not, as a Dakota 

completion? I s n ' t t h a t what you said? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I n your experience i n the San Juan Basin, doesn't 

an operator always r e t a i n the r i g h t t o go uphole and t e s t 

shallower zones i f the primary o b j e c t i v e i s dry? 

A. No. 

Q. You don't? 

A. Not always. I f i t ' s provided f o r i n whatever 

your agreement i s , yes. 

Q. When you were l o o k i n g a t t h i s prospect, d i d you 

t h i n k t h a t the p o o l i n g order would r e s u l t i n an order t h a t 

i f t he Mesaverde was dry they wouldn't have the r i g h t t o go 

— I mean, I'm s o r r y , i f the Dakota was dry they wouldn't 

have the r i g h t t o go uphole? 

A. No, I d i d n ' t t h i n k t h a t , I thought they would 

have the r i g h t t o come up. 
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Q. Now, when you were making proposals on behalf of 

Energen, you were a c t u a l l y proposing back t o McElvain terms 

t h a t were s i m i l a r t o what they had accepted on other w e l l s ; 

i s t h a t your testimony? 

A. On another w e l l , yes. 

Q. And t h a t was the S e i f e r t w e l l ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And d i d n ' t you t e s t i f y t h a t was a recompletion as 

opposed t o a r e d r i l l ? 

A. I t h i n k t h a t ' s r i g h t . 

Q. And when you go and make proposals and t r y t o 

ne g o t i a t e — Do you negotiate f o r Energen? 

A. I do. 

Q. When you go out and ne g o t i a t e , don't you look a t 

each i n d i v i d u a l w e l l and look a t the i n d i v i d u a l 

c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s of the i n d i v i d u a l w e l l ? 

A. I do. 

Q. Now, i n terms of the options t h a t Energen has, 

they could have j u s t j o i n e d i n the w e l l , c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's — 

Q. That's something they could have done? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Instead, you proposed a farmout w i t h an 

a d d i t i o n a l o v e r r i d e — 

A. Correct. 
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Q. — and a back-in a f t e r payout? 

A. Minor a d d i t i o n a l o v e r r i d e , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. The minor changes, however, would g i v e McElvain 

l e s s than i f you j u s t j o i n e d ; i s n ' t t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Without question. 

Q. And i f they do t h a t , don't they also g i v e you 

more? 

A. I'm not sure — What do you mean? 

Q. I mean, i f t h i s whole arrangement d e l i v e r s t o 

McElvain l e s s , doesn't i t mean you're r e a l l y r e t a i n i n g 

more? 

A. More than what? 

Q. More than j u s t s t r a i g h t j o i n d e r i n the w e l l ? 

A. Mr. Carr, I'm not sure I understand. I'm s o r r y , 

I'm not t r y i n g t o be d i f f i c u l t . 

Q. No, and I'm not t r y i n g t o take you someplace you 

don't want t o go. 

A. A l l r i g h t . 

Q. You ele c t e d not t o j o i n i n the w e l l ? 

A. Right. 

Q. You must have f e l t a farmout w i t h an o v e r r i d e and 

a back-in was a b e t t e r deal f o r Energen? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And a t the same time i t was g i v i n g t o McElvain 

l e s s than j u s t your s t r a i g h t - o u t j o i n d e r ? 
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A. Less than what we would have had, r i g h t , t h a t i s 

c o r r e c t . 

Q. And less than what they would have had, because 

t h e r e would have been a d d i t i o n a l burdens on i t . There 

would have been a d d i t i o n a l o v e r r i d e s , i s t h a t not — 

A. Correct. 

Q. The would have been small, but they would have 

been there? 

A. Right. 

Q. And you were proposing an o v e r r i d e of 2.5 

percent, and McElvain wouldn't go f o r i t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. You proposed a back-in a f t e r payout? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And they wouldn't go f o r i t ? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Back-in a f t e r payout w i l l a f f e c t , a c t u a l l y , the 

r a t e of r e t u r n on your investment, even i f i t doesn't 

a f f e c t payout; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. A f t e r , a f t e r you've recouped your money — 

Q. But i t — 

A. — t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. — but w i l l i t — i t w i l l a f f e c t your r a t e — 

A. But not the economics? 

Q. Correct, but i t does have an economic impact? 
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A. Later, yes. 

Q. Now, you proposed a farmout back, decided not t o 

j o i n , McElvain declined t o take less than your j o i n d e r ; 

i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you stand before the D i v i s i o n today having 

gone through a l l these n e g o t i a t i o n s you've described, but 

you have no agreement t o date f o r Energen's v o l u n t a r y 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n the w e l l ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. No, we don't. 

Q. You do not have agreement? 

A. We don't have agreement. 

MR. CARR: Thank you, t h a t ' s a l l . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: I don't have any questions. 

Thank you. 

THE WITNESS: Thanks. 

MR. CARR: I have a statement. I'm the 

Ap p l i c a n t , I want t o go l a s t . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: You want t o go l a s t , okay. Who 

wants t o go f i r s t ? 

MR. BRUCE: I ' l l go. 
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EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. And i n your statement 

I ' d l i k e i f you could t e l l me, k i n d of summarize what 

you're seeking out of t h i s . 

MR. BRUCE: I've already got i t — 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. 

MR. BRUCE: — summarized f o r you, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Great. 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, i n s o f a r as my c l i e n t , 

NM&O Operating, i s concerned, the chain of events i s t h i s : 

September 1, 1999, McElvain sends out a proposal 

l e t t e r . 

September 13th, my c l i e n t sends a l e t t e r saying 

i t doesn't want t o j o i n i n the w e l l but making a couple of 

proposals. 

Then my c l i e n t c a l l s McElvain. McElvain doesn't 

c a l l independently, McElvain simply says, They're not 

i n t e r e s t e d , they never make any other proposal whatsoever 

d u r i n g the next two months. 

This hearing i s scheduled November 18th, t h e r e 

are zero contacts d u r i n g the p r i o r two months. 

The hearing was continued. The very next day, 

November 19th, a l e t t e r goes out t o NM&O saying, Well, we 

might consider a farmout but there are serious t i t l e 

d e f e c t s . However, they don't r e a l l y s p e c i f y what those 

d e f e c t s are. 
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September 23rd, NM&O w r i t e s t o McElvain and asks 

f o r p o r t i o n s of the opinion a f f e c t i n g i t s i n t e r e s t s . We 

s t i l l haven't seen t h a t . 

Mr. Examiner, Section 70-2-18 of t h e O i l and Gas 

Act r e q u i r e s g o o d - f a i t h n e g o t i a t i o n p a r t i e s before p o o l i n g 

i s commenced. C e r t a i n l y before the scheduled November 18th 

hearing, t h e r e were not good f a i t h n e g o t i a t i o n s . There 

were zero n e g o t i a t i o n s . They simply sent out a proposal 

l e t t e r and went t o a po o l i n g hearing. 

Second, McElvain says, a f t e r the November 18th 

hearing, t h a t , w e l l , w e ' l l consider a farmout, but they 

won't in f o r m my c l i e n t s of what the defects i n t h e i r t i t l e 

are. I n essence, i t won't allow a c u r a t i v e a c t i o n on the 

t i t l e d e f e c t s , but i t won't take a farmout u n t i l those 

t i t l e d e f e cts are cured. That's a Catch-22. 

Based on the foregoing, NM&O asserts t h a t 

McElvain has not negotiated i n good f a i t h i n t h i s w e l l 

prospect, and t h i s case should be dismissed. 

I f i t ' s not dismissed, i t ' s c l e a r t h a t McElvain 

has a s u b s t a n t i a l ongoing d r i l l i n g program i n t h i s 

immediate area. I t ' s already d r i l l e d f i v e w e l l s i n a l l of 

these a d j o i n i n g sections. And based on t h a t f a c t , we do 

not b e l i e v e a r i s k p enalty of 2 00 percent i s a p p r o p r i a t e . 

Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, the scope of i n q u i r y 
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w i t h respect t o the concerns of Energen i s f r a n k l y very 

l i m i t e d i n t h i s case, and i t has t o do w i t h whether or not 

the A p p l i c a n t has made a g o o d - f a i t h e f f o r t t o o b t a i n 

v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r . 

Before you can w r i t e an order and exercise the 

considerable p o l i c e powers of the D i v i s i o n t o co m p u l s o r i l y 

pool r e a l p r o p e r t y i n t e r e s t s , you must make a f i n d i n g , 

based on the evidence, t h a t the Ap p l i c a n t has indeed 

exercised good f a i t h t o secure v o l u n t a r y j o i n d e r . We 

submit t o you, Mr. Examiner, t h a t the A p p l i c a n t has f a i l e d 

t o s a t i s f y t h a t burden of proof on i t s pr ima f a c i e case and 

t h e r e f o r e i t s A p p l i c a t i o n must be dismissed. 

I n response t o questions from me, t h e Ap p l i c a n t ' s 

land witness t e s t i f i e d t h a t good f a i t h i s indeed measured 

by the accepted custom and p r a c t i c e s of the i n d u s t r y i n the 

San Juan Basin, but a t the same time he couldn't t e l l you 

what those standards were. Consequently, he could not t e l l 

you whether or not those standards had been met. And they 

are o b l i g e d t o do t h a t under Section 70-2-17 and 70-2-18 of 

the New Mexico O i l and Gas Act. 

The d i f f e r e n c e between a .29-percent and .14-

percent a f t e r payout back-in o v e r r i d e — I'm s o r r y , before 

payout o v e r r i d e , i s an i n s i g n i f i c a n t d i f f e r e n c e . But I 

t h i n k i n t h i s circumstance i t ' s a demarcation f o r you t o 

look a t and say, This i s one instance where the A p p l i c a n t 
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has crossed the l i n e . This i s one instance where the 

Ap p l i c a n t i s abusing and misusing the compulsory p o o l i n g 

s t a t u t e . 

Not only does the D i v i s i o n have an o b l i g a t i o n 

under the O i l and Gas Act, and s p e c i f i c a l l y the p o o l i n g 

s t a t u t e s , t o p r o t e c t c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s , but i t i s also 

o b l i g e d t o p r o t e c t r e a l p r operty i n t e r e s t s before the 

p o l i c e powers of the s t a t e can be exercised. That's what 

you must do i n t h i s case, Mr. Examiner, because t h e r e has 

been demonstrated misuse of the s t a t u t e and because t h e r e 

has been a f a i l u r e t o approve on the A p p l i c a n t ' s d i r e c t 

case. 

We submit t h a t the A p p l i c a t i o n must be dismissed. 

Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Carr? 

MR. CARR: May i t please the Examiner, I t h i n k 

f i r s t I ' l l address NM&O, and I t h i n k i t ' s important as you 

evaluate the case t o recognize t h a t both of the p a r t i e s who 

were here complaining could p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l . NM&O 

could j o i n , i f i t knew what i t s i n t e r e s t was. 

I t h i n k i n h i s c l o s i n g statement Mr. Bruce 

c l e a r l y went outside the evidence t h a t ' s been presented i n 

t h i s case. He suggests t h a t we're r e f u s i n g — s o r t of 

h i d i n g the h i d i n g the b a l l w i t h NM&O. 

The testimony i s t h a t over a year ago, Mr. Jordan 
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t a l k e d w i t h Mr. Sweet of NM&O and discussed t h e i r t i t l e 

problems. And these problems, t h e r e has been no a c t i o n by 

them t o cure the problems. The problems stand as r e a l 

obstacles t o going forward and developing the p r o p e r t y . 

And then Mr. Bruce wants t o take you beyond the 

evidence. He wants t o say, Hey, they're l e a s i n g out here, 

they've been d r i l l i n g w e l l s , they may d r i l l more. And 

t h a t , i n and of i t s e l f , says there's no r i s k . I guess what 

he says i s t h a t i n the f u t u r e i f anyone e s t a b l i s h e s an 

ownership p o s i t i o n i n the area before they d r i l l t he f i r s t 

w e l l , t h e i r ownership p o s i t i o n would o v e r r i d e other 

c o n s i d e r a t i o n s , l i k e the absence of data, the absence of 

data t h a t we have here. 

The data we presented shows t h a t these are rank 

w i l d c a t s t h a t were out i n the areas where t h e r e i s l i t t l e 

or no i n f o r m a t i o n a v a i l a b l e and t h a t the r i s k i s 

s u b s t a n t i a l , and NM&O would l i k e us t o c a r r y the r i s k f o r 

them u n t i l they j o i n . Energen wants us t o c a r r y the r i s k 

f o r them as w e l l . 

NM&O can j o i n , NM&O can clean up i t s t i t l e 

problems, or NM&O can be for c e pooled. But t h a t i s n ' t bad 

f a i t h . I f t h e r e i s bad f a i t h , perhaps i t ' s r unning i n here 

screaming and h o l l e r i n g t h a t we don't know what's wrong 

w i t h our own property when a year ago we t r i e d t o t e l l 

them. 
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As t o Energen, there's c e r t a i n standards t h a t 

govern compulsory po o l i n g , and one of those i s t h a t the OCD 

r e q u i r e s t h a t p a r t i e s t r y t o reach an agreement. I t h i n k 

i t would be very hard t o look a t t h i s record and not 

conclude t h a t t h e r e have been s u b s t a n t i a l n e g o t i a t i o n s back 

and f o r t h between Energen and McElvain, but they have no 

agreement. 

So Energen comes here today t o t r y and use t h i s 

proceeding t o f o r c e a bad deal. And we submit t h a t ' s not 

the standard, t h a t ' s not what you're here f o r . You're here 

t o see whether or not we negotiated w i t h them, whether we 

i n good f a i t h t r i e d t o reach an agreement. 

And they can say i t ' s bad f a i t h , but look a t the 

evidence. You know, f i r s t they scream, Oh, they haven't 

t o l d us what the standards are. Well, Energen d i d n ' t t e l l 

us what the standards are. The standards are, you go out 

and t r y t o work a deal w i t h the other p a r t y . 

Are the standards using the same p r o v i s i o n s w i t h 

every agreement? Mr. Corcoran says, w e l l , you know, we 

o f f e r e d them what they had o f f e r e d before. But when you 

l i s t e n t o the testimony, they were proposing back what we 

were going t o do w i t h a recompletion or a r e - e n t r y , not a 

new d r i l l . Standards haven't been defi n e d by anybody. 

The issue f o r you i s whether or not v o l u n t a r y 

agreement has been reached a f t e r g o o d - f a i t h n e g o t i a t i o n s . 
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I submit on t h i s record, the answer screams a t you, and 

i t ' s a screaming no. There i s no agreement. 

Energen could have j o i n e d , very simply. They 

wanted t o giv e McElvain less than what McElvain would have 

g o t t e n had they j o i n e d . McElvain has not agreed t o take 

l e s s , and you're not here t o fo r c e them t o do t h a t . And 

when we have t r i e d t o get them t o come i n we have made 

counterproposals, they've been reviewed w i t h you. We are 

e n t i t l e d t o seek and receive a p o o l i n g order. 

I mean, the standards are simple. We're e n t i t l e d 

t o a p o o l i n g order. We own an i n t e r e s t , we have a r i g h t t o 

d r i l l , we've proposed the w e l l , we've been n e g o t i a t i n g w i t h 

them f o r a long time, and we have no agreement, and the 

r i s k p e n a l t y should be imposed a t 200 percent because, 

simply, t h e r e i s no data i n the area which would t e l l us 

anything but t h a t we're t a k i n g a s u b s t a n t i a l r i s k f o r 

o t h e r s . 

And as t o Energen the bottom l i n e remains. They 

want us t o accept an i n t e r e s t w i t h more burdens on i t than 

we're w i l l i n g t o accept, and we have s a i d no. 

On the f a c t s before you, we're e n t i t l e d t o a 

p o o l i n g order so t h a t we can go forward and d r i l l t h i s 

w e l l , and we're e n t i t l e d t o a 200-percent r i s k p e n a l t y . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay, what I ' d l i k e i s a rough 

d r a f t order from a l l t h r e e p a r t i e s by the 10th. That's 
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next Friday. 

MR. BRUCE: That's f i n e . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: And ther e being n o t h i n g f u r t h e r 

i n t h i s case, Case 12,284 w i l l be taken under advisement. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

1:18 p.m.) 
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